(o)

®
&
O
.
<
w

Public Facilities and Safety Committee
Beaufort County, SC

Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort

Monday, June 24, 2024
3:00 PM

b

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:
LOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN
THOMAS REITZ PAULA BROWN
ANNA MARIA TABERNIK JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO

CALLTO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
APPROVAL OF MINUTES - May 28, 2024
CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's
time to another is not allowed.

ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix

AGENDA ITEMS

|0

|©

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR TO ACCEPT AN INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA
RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY (RIA) FOR THE ALLIOY COMMUNITY ($187,500.00) - Jared Fralix,
P.E., Assistant County Administrator — Infrastructure

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR TO PURSUE CONDEMNATION ON PARCEL R200 011 000 0007 0000 ASSOCIATED WITH




16.

SHEPPARD ROAD, CAUSEY WAY AND DOCK BUILDERS DRIVE ON LADY’S ISLAND (FISCAL IMPACT: $10,000
& associated legal fees for condemnation funded by 1000-30-1301-51160) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant
County Administrator, Infrastructure

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA BIL AIRPORT TERMINAL
PROGRAM GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 55,000,000 FOR HXD TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS - CONTINGENT
UPON FINAL FAA OFFER (FISCAL IMPACT: The BIL ATP program provides 95% of the project funding
(55,000,000) of the funding, and airport operations will fund 5% 5263,158 - Grant Expenditures - GL Code
5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold; Airports Director

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT FUNDING FOR THE
HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) TAXIWAY F REHABILITATION PROJECT- CONTINGENT UPON FINAL
FAA OFFER (FISCAL IMPACT: The FAA will provide 90% (52,993,835) of the total project cost, and the
SCAC will fund 10% (5332,648). Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold;
Airports Director

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$137,209 FOR HXD AIRFIELD DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS — DESIGN AND BIDDING CONTINGENT UPON
FINAL FAA OFFER (FISCAL IMPACT: The FAA will provide 90% $137,209 of the funding, and airport
operations will fund 10% (515,245). FAA funds for this project are already budgeted in the FAA account
- Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold; Airports Director

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD CONSOR ENGINEERS, LLC THE DESIGN CONTRACT FOR PAUKIE
ISLAND CAUSEWAY CULVERT REPLACEMENT (FISCAL IMPACT: The contract fee is $162,610.85. Staff
recommends a 15% contingency of $24,391.63, bringing the project budget to $187,002.48. The funding
for this project is Road Use Fee (TAG) Professional Services — account 2342-30-0000-51160 with a
balance of $1,357,820.73) - Bryan Bauer, PE — Interim Director of Engineering

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND
SCDOT (FISCAL IMPACT: The SMA allows for reimbursement from SCDOT to Beaufort County, not
exceeding $197,700 annually) - Bryan Bauer, PE — Interim Director of Engineering

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT AWARD TO BEAUFORT METAL OF BEAUFORT, SC FOR RFP
#032624 SCRAP AND WHITE GOODS, PROCESSING, RECYCLING, AND MARKETING ($0.00)

ADJOURNMENT

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND

BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT:
https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html

Item 5.

Public Facilities and Safety Committee

Beaufort County, SC

Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls
Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort

Tuesday, May 28, 2024
3:00 PM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

LOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN
THOMAS REITZ PAULA BROWN
ANNA MARIA TABERNIK JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO

1. CALLTO ORDER

Committee Chairman Cunningham called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm.

PRESENT

Committee Chairman Logan Cunningham
Committee Vice-Chairman David P. Bartholomew (arrived late at 3:42)
Council Member Paula Brown

Council Member Anna Maria Tabernik

Council Member Gerald Dawson

Council Member York Glover

Council Member Alice Howard

Council Member Thomas Reitz

Council Member Mark Lawson (arrived late at 3:31)
Chairman Joseph Passiment (arrived late at 4:14)

ABSENT
Vice-Chairman Lawrence McElynn

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Committee Chairman Cunningham led the Pledge of Allegiance




Item 5.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

Committee Chairman Cunningham noted that the public notification of the meeting has been published,
posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Council Member Brown to approve the
agenda.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES- April 22, 2024

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Council Member Brown, to approve the
minutes from April 22, 2024.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's
time to another is not allowed.

Citizen comment was taken.

Mike Hagen- Sales Tax Referendum

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view comments.
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=78

ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix
Jared Fralix- Employee Updates
Tallulah McGee- Update on Animal Shelter

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view updates.
https.//beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=180

AGENDA ITEMS

UPDATE PRESENTATION ON WIMBEE CREEK FISHING PIER - Bill Barna, McSweeney Engineers

McSweeney Engineers conducted inspections of the Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier in 2018 and 2019. As part
of the new inspection reports, McSweeney provided a condition evaluation and repair recommendations
for the pier. As requested by the County in 2020, they analyzed six (6) repair and demolition alternatives

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=78
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=180

10.

11.

Item 5.

and probate costs. Repairs have not been performed, but based on recommendations in the 2019 report,
spans 7 & 8 were closed.

The recommendation is to update demolition plans and specifications. Demolish pier. Explore options for
site improvements.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion and update.
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391 ?ts=1048

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER
PLAN FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY’S ACTIVE PARKS AND RECREATION FACILITIES - Dale Butts, Assistant County
Administrator

Eric Brown, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Wood & Partners, who presented a preliminary
draft of their findings, comprising the Parks & Recreation Master Plan, to the Committee last year. This
presentation is the final product.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Brown, to Recommend
Approval to Council of a Resolution Adopting a Parks and Recreation Master Plan for Beaufort County's
Active Parks and Recreation Facilities.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391 ?ts=2077

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY UTILITY EASEMENT # 904091
ENCUMBERING PROPERTY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY -Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County
Administrator, Infrastructure

Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc. is requesting a 10' utility easement on County Parcel R100 031 000
00098 0000 to facilitate improvements/upgrades to main lines in the Shell Point Area.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Committee Vice- Chair Bartholomew, to
Recommend Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to
Execute the Necessary Documents to Convey Utility Easement #904091 Encumbering Property Owned by
Beaufort County.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https.//beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4618

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF DRAINAGE
EASEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH DRAINAGE SYSTEMS LOCATED IN THE SHELL POINT AREA ON PARCELS
R100 033 00A 03500000 & R100 033 00A 0116 0000 (FISCAL IMPACT: Work to be included in Stormwater
Maintenance account # 5025-90-9020-51170) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator,
Infrastructure

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=1048
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=2077
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4618

12.

13.

Item 5.

Resolution 2022/63 outlines an updated process for drainage easement requests. Beaufort County legal
department has recently determined that drainage easement conveyance and acceptance should be
approved through a County Council Ordinance.

Beaufort County Stormwater Department is working on drainage issues in the Shell Point area. Parcels
R100 033 00A 0350 0000 and R100 033 00A 0116 0000 will help convey drainage to reduce water backup
on the parcels and surrounding properties.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Bartholomew, to
Recommend Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Acceptance of Drainage Easements
Associated with Drainage Systems Located in the Shell Point Area on Parcels R100 033 00A 0350 0000 &
R100 033 00A 0116 0000.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https.//beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391 ?ts=4647

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF A
PORTION OF PARCELS R123-018-000-0483-0000 AND R200-018-000-0257-0000 OF REAL PROPERTY FROM
BEAUFORT COUNTY TO THE CITY OF BEAUFORT ASSOCIATED WITH US 21 AIRPORT AREA AND FRONTAGE
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure

Included in the November 2018 Transportation Sales and Use Tax Referendum approved by voters was a
list of projects to include the Lady's Island Corridor Study designed to improve safety and capacity. Moving
forward with improvements on US21 around the airport, Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort entered
into an IGA on March 19, 2020, and 1st Amendment dated September 16, 2021, which states that upon
completion of the project, the County will not retain any interest in the roadway improvements and the
City will maintain the facility as a city street.

The County is nearing completion of the US21 Airport area and Frontage Road project, which is referred
to as the "Lost Island Connectivity Project," and is initiating the conveyance of the right of way obtained
by the County to the City as agreed in the referenced IGA.

Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Bartholomew, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to
Recommend Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Conveyance of a Portion of Parcels
R123-018-000-0483-0000 and R200-018-000-0257-0000 of Real Property from Beaufort County to the City
of Beaufort Associated with US 21 Airport Area and Frontage Road Improvements.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https.//beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391 ?ts=4705

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF
PROPERTIES ENCUMBERING THE ROAD RIGHT OF WAY FOR PRIVATE SECTION OF SCHEPER LANE - Jared
Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure

Property owners on a private section of Scheper Lane petitioned the County to include the road in its
inventory, and the County Council approved this acceptance on March 11, 2024. The owners wish to
convey their interest in road right of way to Beaufort County on the portion of the road that the County

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4647
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4705

14.

15.

Item 5.

accepted into the County Road inventory. Staff recommends approval of an Ordinance authorizing the
Interim County Administrator to execute all necessary documents to accept properties encumbering the
road right of way for the private section of Scheper Lane.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to Recommend
Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to Execute Any and All
Necessary Documents for the Acceptance of Properties Encumbering the Road Right of Way for Private
Section of Scheper Lane.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4773

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO COASTAL AIR TECHNOLOGIES FOR IFB
#050724 BEAUFORT COUNTY DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS OFFICE HVAC REPLACEMENT (FISCAL
IMPACT: $5205,590.00. Funding comes from the Capital Improvements fund, Account #1040-80-1310-
54420. Current account balance is $2,005,987.74 as of May 14, 2024) - Eric Larson, PE, Director, Capital
Projects

Beaufort County requested bids for the Beaufort County Disabilities and Special Needs Office HVAC
replacement on May 7, 2024. One bidder submitted a bid, which was received from Coastal Air
Technologies at a cost of $186,900.00. Staff reviewed the detailed bid submittal and found the bid to be
responsive and the prices to be fair and reasonable.

The Disabilities and Special Needs Office HVAC Replacement project includes replacing the existing
geothermal HVAC system, which is beyond its useful service life and has been prone to backdowns in
recent years. The new system will use more modern equipment. The total funds requested are the fixed
bid amount of $186,900 plus a 10% contingency (518,690) for unforeseen conditions. Therefore, the total
amount requested is $205,590.00.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to Recommend
Approval to Council to Award a Contract to Coastal Air Technologies for IFB #050724 Beaufort County
Disabilities and Special Needs Office HVAC Replacement.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https.//beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391 ?ts=4882

DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE AMENDMENTS TO THE PROPOSED 2024 TRANSPORTATION SALES AND USE
TAX ORDINANCE AND REFERENDUM.

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure, introduced the discussion of possible
amendments to the proposed 2024 Transportation and Sales Tax Ordinance and Referendum.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Dawson, to schedule a
special called meeting for Public Facilities and Safety to discuss the proposed 2024 Transportation Sales
and Use Tax Ordinance and Referendum.

The motion was rescinded.

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4773
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4882

Item 5.

Due to time constraints, the item will be fully heard and discussed at a special meeting of the Public
Facilities and Safety Committee, the date of which has not yet been determined.

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion.
https.//beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=5082

EXECUTIVE SESSION

16.

PURSUANT TO S. C. CODE §30-4-70(a)(2): RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE WHERE THE LEGAL ADVICE RELATES
TO MATTERS COVERED BY THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE (FY25 BUDGET ORDINANCE)

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Bartholomew, to
go into Executive Session.

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection

4:49 pm —5:04 pm

END OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

17.

18.

MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

There were no matters arising out of the Executive Session

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 5:04 pm

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND

BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT:
https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html

Ratified:

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=5082
https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html

Item 8.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO
ACCEPT AN INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE
AUTHORITY (RIA) FOR $187,500.00

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Public Facilities and Safety Committee Meeting June 24™", 2024

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator — Infrastructure (5 minutes)

ITEM BACKGROUND:

On March 7t, 2024 Beaufort County staff applied for South Carolina RIA Infrastructure Planning grant funds to
perform a stormwater drainage infrastructure study for an area in southern Beaufort County referred to as
Alljoy.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

The RIA funds for Alljoy will be used to perform a comprehensive drainage study of stormwater drainage
infrastructure in the Alljoy area. This study will be used to provide information on existing flooding conditions
and provide solutions for the County to implement drainage improvements or retrofits to the stormwater
infrastructure system.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The County will be responsible for a 25% match. This equates to $62,500.00 and was budgeted for in FY25
from account code 5025-90-9020-54420.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Staff recommends approval of a resolution authorizing the Interim County Administrator to accept an
Infrastructure Planning Grant award from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for $187,500.

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve /deny/amend a resolution authorizing the Interim County Administrator to accept an
Infrastructure Planning Grant award from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for $187,500.

(Next Step — Move forward to County Council for Approval).




RESOLUTION 2024 /__

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE INTRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE
SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY FOR THE AMOUNT OF
$187,500 FOR THE BEAUFORT COUNTY ALLJOY DRAINAGE STUDY

WHEREAS Beaufort County Stormwater Department applied for funding to perform a drainage
study in southern Beaufort County on March 8%, 2024 for the amount of $250,000; and

WHEREAS Beaufort County Stormwater was awarded $187,500 from the South Carolina Rural
Infrastructure Authority, with a $62,500 match from the County; and

WHEREAS Beaufort County will execute the grant’s requirements during the duration of the
project while completing all applicable reporting.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA hereby approves the acceptance of the Infrastructure Planning Grant
from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for the amount of $187,500 for the Beaufort County
Alljoy Drainage Study project.

Adopted this day of , 2024,

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph Passiment, Chairman

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 8.

10




Item 8.

Bonnie Ammons
Executive Director

Harry M. Lightsey 111
Chairman

South Carolina
Rural Infrastructure Authority

May 20, 2024

The¢ Honorable Joe Passimeiit
Chairman

Beaufort County

120 Shanklin Road

Beaufort, South Carolina 29906

Dear Chairman Passiment:
On behalf of the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority, I am pleased to inform you that an
Infrastructure Planning grant has been approved in the amount of $187,500 for the Alljoy Drainage

Study project, This project supports long-term community sustainability efforts.

You will reccive a grant agreement which identifies the conditions of this assistance within the
next few days. We look forward to working with you to build infrastructure capacity for the future.

Sincerely,

4 7] £
. Lightsey III
haj#fnan

cc:  Beaufort County Delegation

11

1201 Main Street, Suite 1600, Columbia, SC 29201 | P: 803-737-0390 | F: 803-737-0894



. .
~ o ———

Item 8.

12




RIA South Carolina

Item 8.

&= Rural Infrastructure Authority

Grant Award

Grantee: Beaufort County Date of Award: May 20, 2024
Grant Title: Alljoy Drainage Study Award Amount: $187.500
Grant Period: ~ May 20, 2024 — November 19, 2025 Grant Number: P-24-5016

The South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority (“RIA™) hereby awards funds to the above-named Grantee, in the

amount shown above, for the activities specified in the Application and for the purposes authorized. The acceptance of

this Award creates a valid and enforceable contract between RIA and the Grantee, which legally binds the Grantee to
carry out the activities set forth in the approved Grant Application in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Grant Agreement, for which this is the signature page.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
. Grantee must submit a revised application form to reflect the customers to be served by the project.
2. Non-RIA funds must be used for any activities on private property.
3. Grantee must indicate in writing its willingness to carry out the recommendations of the study.
4. Grantee must submit the proposed solicitation for planning services to RIA for review before advertisement.
5. No more than 75% of grant funds will be disbursed prior to successful RIA review of final deliverables.
6. Grantee is required to participate in a start-up technical assistance meeting with RIA staff.
7. Grantee must comply with the RIA State Grant Project Management Procedures.

This contract shall become effective, as of the date of the award, upon returning one executed copy of this Grant Award
which has been signed in the space provided below. The copy must have original signatures and must be returned within

forty-five (45) days from the date of the award.

Bonnie Ammons, Executive Director
SC Rural Infrastructure Authority

ACCEPTANCE FOR THE GRANTEE:

Signature of Chief Executive Official Date
(with authority to execute contract for Grantee)

Name and Title of Chief Executive Official

ATTEST:

Signature of Authorized Official for Grantee Title of Authorized Official

13




RIA South Carolina

Item 8.

&= Rural Infrastructure Authority

Grant Award

Grantee: Beaufort County Date of Award: May 20, 2024
Grant Title: Alljoy Drainage Study Award Amount: $187,500
Grant Period:  May 20, 2024 — November 19, 2025 Grant Number: P-24-5016

The South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority (“RIA”) hereby awards funds to the above-named Grantee, in the
amount shown above, for the activities specified in the Application and for the purposes authorized. The acceptance of
this Award creates a valid and enforceable contract between RIA and the Grantee, which legally binds the Grantee to
carry out the activities set forth in the approved Grant Application in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Grant Agreement, for which this is the signature page.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Grantee must submit a revised application form to reflect the customers to be served by the project.
Non-RIA funds must be used for any activities on private property.

Grantee must indicate in writing its willingness to carry out the recommendations of the study.

Grantee must submit the proposed solicitation for planning services to RIA for review before advertisement.
No more than 75% of grant funds will be disbursed prior to successful RIA review of final deliverables.
Grantee is required to participate in a start-up technical assistance meeting with RIA staff.

Grantee must comply with the RIA State Grant Project Management Procedures.

N —

This contract shall become effective, as of the date of the award, upon returning one executed copy of this Grant Award
which has been signed in the space provided below. The copy must have original signatures and must be returned within

forty-five (45) days from the date of the award.

[4 3 . s B
Bonnie Ammons, Executive Director
SC Rural Infrastructure Authority

ACCEPTANCE FOR THE GRANTEE:

Signature of Chief Executive Official Date
(with authority to execute contract for Grantee)

Name and Title of Chief Executive Official

ATTEST:

Signature of Authorized Olfficial for Grantee Title of Authorized Official

14




RIA South Carolina
&=\ Rural Infrastructure Authority

1201 Main Street, Sui
Columbia, SQ om s
www.ria

Approved Signatures for Payments and Checks

Please print or type the following information.

Block 1: Grantee Name & Address

Block 2: Processing Method for Payments

Grant#: P-24-5016
Project Title: Alljoy Drainage Study

Grantee: Beaufort County
Address: 120 Shanklin Road
Beaufort, South Carolina
Zip Code:29506
Phone:

Is your organization set up to receive direct deposits from
the State Treasurer’s Office (STO)? Yes[J No [l

If no, please go to www.Treasurer.sc.gov/ach and

complete the enrollment form. Until you are enrolled in the
electronic payment method, the STO will mail checks to the address
listed on the federal Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and
Certification Form (W-9) which is on file at the STO. Please contact
the STO to update the form if you have had a change in address.

Upon receipt of the check or direct deposit, you should promptly
deposit it in the account designated for this grant.

Block 3: Individuals Approved to Sign RIA Request for Payment Forms and Checks Written to the Contractor

Please list all individuals who typically sign checks on behalf of the grantee in the spaces below. Additional forms may be used if needed.

Only individuals listed in Block 3 are approved to request funds or sign checks using RIA grant funds.

Two approved signatures are required on all checks using grant funds. Only one approved signature is required on RIA Request for Payment forms.

A. Name: B. Name:

Title: Title:

Original Signature: Original Signature:
C. Name: D. Name:

Title: Title:

Original Signature: Original Signature:
E. Name: F. Name:

Title: Title:

Original Signature: Original Signature:
Block 4: Authorizing Executive Official Submit to RIA

To ensure appropriate internal controls for the grant funds, | hereby certify
that the individuals whose signatures appear in Block 3 are the only
individuals approved tosign checks and makerequests for payment on the
grant. | also understand that as the authorizing official, I cannot sign
checks or make requests for payment.

Name:

Title:

Address:

Zip Code:

Phone:

Email:

Original Signature:

Return this form to RIA within 45 days of grant award.

If additional approved individuals are needed in Block 3, submit
additional forms/pages.

If staff changes occur, revise and resubmit this form.

Remember: Only individuals listed in Block 3 are approved
to request funds or sign checks using RIA grant funds. Two
signatures are required on checks.

The individual who signs Block 4 must be a Chief Executive
Official such as administrator, executive director, or council
chair. The person in Block 4 cannot also be listed in Block 3.




Item 8.

Harry M. Lightsey III Bonnie Ammons

Chairman Executive Director

South Carolina
Rural Infrastructure Authority

GRANT AGREEMENT

Beaufort County (Grant #P-24-5016)

In accordance with the provisions of Section 11-50-10 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina,
1976, as amended (the “Code”), the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority, hereinafter
referred to as the “Authority,” does commit to the Grantee, a Grant as set forth in the Grant Award
which is attached hereto and made a part of this Grant Agreement (the “Agreement”). The
acceptance of the Agreement creates a valid and enforceable contract between the Authority and
the Grantee, legally binding the Grantee to carry out the activities and obligations set forth in the
approved Grant Application including any attachments or other submissions made, or to be made
thereto, and this Agreement. Such activities and obligations shall be carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, as well as the Grant Program Requirements
and Grant Project Management Procedures for Fiscal Year 2024, and any other documents or
conditions referred to herein and as may be revised or updated from time to time.

The Grant Award serves as the signature page for this Agreement and must be executed and
returned to the Authority within forty-five (45) days of the Award Date.

Section 1: DEFINITIONS.
(a) Agreement means the Grant Award and Grant Agreement.

(b) Application means the Grant Application forms submitted by the Grantee and
approved by the Authority.

(c) Grant Award means the form setting forth the amount of funds awarded to the
Grantee and serving as the signature page to this Agreement.

(d) Award Date means the date on which the Grant is awarded by the Authority, which
is set forth in the Grant Award.

(e) Grant Period means the time period reflected in the Grant Award during which the
Grant will be implemented for its stated and authorized purpose.

(H Contractor means a private contractor who undertakes all or part of the Project.

(2) Authority means the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority.

P-24-5016 +0/23 16

1201 Main Street, Suite 1600, Columbia, SC 29201 | P: 803-737-0390 | F: 803-737-0894



(h) Grant means the dollars committed by the Authority to the Grantee for the Project
identified in the Application and set forth in the Grant Award.

@) Grantee means the unit of government or other eligible entity such, as a special
purpose or public service district, or public works commission, designated for the
Grant and set forth in the Grant Award and this Agreement.

)] Project means the project identified and described in the Application for which the
Authority is awarding the Grant.

(k) State means the State of South Carolina and any agencies or offices thereof.

1)) Subrecipient means a governmental or not-for-profit water and/or sewer
organization authorized to carry out any portion of the Project under a written
agreement with the Grantee that has been approved in advance by the Authority.

Section 2: RIA PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS AND GRANT PROJECT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES. The Grantee must comply with the requirements of Title 11, Chapter 50 of the
Code as well as any grant project management procedures provided by the Authority.

Section 3: SCOPE OF WORK. The Grant shall be used only for specified activities approved
in the Application, which is included by reference to this Agreement as if fully set forth herein,
unless otherwise approved in signed writing by the Authority.

Section 4: AWARD. The Authority has legal authorization under the Code to award grants for
qualified projects and to enter into agreements. Accordingly, the Authority hereby commits the
Grant to be used only for the Project and related costs, as described in the Application. Funds
obligated or expended prior to the Grant Award or for activities that have not received signed
written approval from the Authority shall be considered ineligible expenses and shall not be
eligible for payment from Grant funds.

The Grantee must obtain from the Authority a signed written notice to proceed prior to incurring
costs against the Grant. If the Grantee needs to incur expenses prior to the Authority’s notification
to proceed, the Grantee must submit a signed written request to the Authority and obtain prior
signed written approval from the Authority. Otherwise, any expenditure made prior to the date of
the signed written notice to proceed is made by the Grantee at its own risk and expense and is not
eligible for payment from Grant funds.

Section 5: PAYMENT. The Grantee must submit to the Authority a certified request for payment
for eligible expenses that are documented by the Grantee.

Eligible expenses are those expenses as set forth in the Application, the Grant Award, or this Grant

Agreement, as well as any expenses as determined at the sole discretion of the Authority and
approved in a signed writing by the Authority.

P-24-5016 Page 2 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

17




The Grantee will certify, to the best of its knowledge, information and belief that the work on the
Project, for which payment from Grant funds is requested, has been completed in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

All requests for payment must be made on forms approved by the Authority. Such requests shall
be certified as valid expenses by an official representative of the Grantee. Invoices or other
documentation reflecting eligible expenses that the Authority may reasonably require must be
submitted with the request for payment. The Authority may make, and the Grantee shall accept,
full or partial disbursements for actual, eligible expenses incurred not to exceed the amount of the
Grant.

Section 6: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT. The Grantee must maintain a financial management
system using generally accepted accounting principles utilizing appropriate internal controls to
provide adequate accountability for the Grant. The Grantee’s records must account for Grant funds
separately and disclose accurate information about the Grant Award, obligations, unobligated
balances, assets, liabilities, expenditures, and income.

Section 7: AUDIT. The Grantee must include an examination and accounting of the expenditures
of Grant funds in its first annual audit following the completion of the Project. The Grantee must
notify the Authority of any audit findings related to the Grant funds or general grant management
and make available a copy of the audit report to the Authority. The Grantee agrees that it will
reimburse the Authority for unauthorized and unwarranted expenditures disclosed in the audit, if
so directed by the Authority. Upon request of the Authority, the Grantee shall make available, and
cause any Contractor to make available, for audit and inspection by the Authority and its
representatives all the books, records, files and other documents relating to any matters pertaining
to the Project, the Application or this Agreement. The audit of Grant funds received under this
Agreement must adhere to the following audit requirements, whichever is applicable:

(a) Generally accepted auditing standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA); or

(b) The General Accounting Office (GAO) Standards for Audits of Governmental
Organizations, Programs, Activities, and Functions, latest revised edition (Yellow
Book).

Section 8: PROCUREMENT: All purchases of goods and services shall be made according to
the applicable procurement laws, regulations and guidelines of the Grantee, provided they
substantially conform to the Model Procurement Ordinance for Local Governments developed in
accordance with the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code. If the Grantee has no
established procurement laws, regulations and guidelines, Article 5: Source Selection and Contract
Formation and Article 9: Construction, Architect-Engineer, Construction Management, and Land
Surveying Services of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code may be used as a
guideline for goods and services and construction funded in whole or in part with grant funds.

Upon request, the Grantee must make available to the Grantee's auditor, the Authority and its

representatives, the Grantee’s public records and other documentation of the procurement process
and any sole source justification. Ifthe Grantee fails to adhere to procurement procedures required

P-24-5016 Page 3 of 9 10723

Item 8.

18




by law, the Authority may require repayment by the Grantee of Grant funds that were expended in
a disallowable manner or the Grantee may be subject to other sanctions as identified herein.

Section 9: MBE OBLIGATION. The Grantee agrees to ensure that minority business enterprises
(MBE) as identified in Article 21, Sections 11-35-5210 through 11-35-5270 of the Code have the
maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in
whole or in part with Grant funds provided under this Agreement. In this regard, the Grantee and
its Contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that MBEs have the
maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.

Section 10: THIRD PARTY CONTRACTS OR AGREEMENTS. The Grantee shall remain
fully obligated under the provisions of the Agreement notwithstanding the Grantee's designation
of, or contract with, any third party or parties for the undertaking of all or any part of this
Agreement. The Grantee warrants that it will enforce all applicable terms and conditions of this
Agreement upon any third parties or Contractors.

All of the services required to complete the Project will be performed by the Grantee or a
subrecipient, and/or a Contractor, under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work
shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized under state and local laws to perform such services.
The Grantee may not award contracts to any Contractors who are ineligible to receive contracts
under any applicable laws or regulations of the State.

The Grantee must submit all proposed agreements with subrecipients or third party Contractors
engaged to perform work within the scope of the Grant to the Authority prior to executing those
agreements. All change orders or contract amendments must be submitted in writing and in
advance to the Authority.

Any disputes arising out of a contract funded in whole or in part with the Grant are the
responsibility of the Grantee and should be resolved in a timely manner in accordance with the
process outlined in the local procedures or state law.

Section 11: PERSONNEL. The Grantee agrees that it has the necessary personnel, or will hire
the necessary personnel, to carry out the activities described in the Application and this Agreement.
All personnel shall be fully qualified and authorized to carry out such activities under State or local
laws, as applicable.

Section 12: PERMITS. The Grantee shall obtain all necessary federal, state and/or local permits
required for the construction and/or operation of the Project. Construction permits are to be
obtained prior to executing construction contracts.

Section 13: SIGNS. Any signs installed at the Project site must be pre-approved in writing by
the Authority and must acknowledge funding by the Authority.

Section 14: PROJECT START-UP. The Project must be substantially underway within 180
days of the Award Date. If the Grantee does not begin the Project within 180 days of the Award
Date, the Authority reserves the right to rescind the Grant, require the repayment of any Grant
funds provided to Grantee and terminate this Agreement.

P-24-5016 Page 4 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

19




Section 15: AMENDMENTS. Any changes in the approved scope of work of the Project must
be submitted in advance and in writing by the Grantee to the Authority and must clearly identify
the need for the change. Amendments must be requested by the Chief Executive Official of the
Grantee. The Authority has no obligation to approve such a request. Any approved amendment
granted by the Authority in a signed writing shall be appended to this Agreement as an amendment.

Section 16: BUDGET CHANGES. Any change in a budget line item (paid in whole or in part
with Grant funds) which is greater than ten percent (10%) of any line item must be approved in a
signed writing by the Authority prior to any payment with Grant funds.

Section 17: FUNDING UNDERRUNS/OVERRUNS. The Grantee agrees that it will return
surplus Grant funds that result from project cost underruns, and that it will commit and provide
monies from its own resources for cost overruns required to complete the Project, unless otherwise
approved. This Agreement creates no obligation on the part of the Authority or the State to provide
funds for the cost overruns.

Section 18: PROJECT COMPLETION. The Grantee must take appropriate action to
implement the Project in a timely manner. The Grantee must complete, or cause to be completed,
the portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part with Grant funds within the timeframe
reflected in the Grant Award, unless otherwise approved. Completion is defined as submission by
the Grantee to the Authority of the final report and documentation of Grant funds expended,
accomplishments and other documentation that may be required by the Authority. The Authority
will conduct such reviews as may be appropriate prior to issuing a notification in writing of the
closure of the Grant. Any unexpended Grant funds at Project completion shall be returned to the
Authority or deobligated from the Grant prior to the closure of the Grant.

The Grantee may submit a written extension request to the Authority to include reasons for any
delays, justification for the request, and a new schedule for completion that outlines the proposed
major project milestones and timeline. The Authority may consider such requests and may, in its
sole discretion, grant an extension to complete the Project. The Authority, in its sole discretion,
may terminate a Grant that cannot be completed in a timely manner and require that any portion
of funds not disbursed to the Grantee be deobligated.

Section 19: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. The Grantee agrees to submit quarterly progress
reports that provide a status update and identification of any significant issues affecting the Project.
Progress reports will be provided in such form as required by the Authority and are due on the first
day of the first full quarter after the Grant Award. Quarters begin on January 1, April 1, July 1
and October 1. Failure to submit progress reports will subject the Grantee to the sanctions
identified herein. A final closeout and accomplishments report must be submitted at Project
completion. The Grantee further agrees to complete and submit any and all other reports, in such
form and according to such schedule, to the extent not specified herein, as may be required by the
Authority.

Section 20: MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS. The Grantee shall retain records for property
purchased totally or partially with Grant funds for a period of three years after its final disposition.
The Grantee shall maintain records relating to procurement matters for the period of time
prescribed by applicable procurement laws, regulations and guidelines, but no less than three years.

P-24-5016 Page 5 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

20




All other pertinent Grant and Project records including financial records, supporting invoices,
receipts or other financial documentation, contracts, agreements, reports and other records shall be
retained for a minimum of three years after notification in writing by the Authority of the closure
of the Grant. However, if any litigation, claim, or audit is initiated before the expiration of any
such period, then records must be retained for three years after the litigation, claim, or audit is
resolved.

Section 21: MONITORING. The Grantee must maintain all Project-related or Grant-related
records for review by the Authority or other State agency as may be required to ensure timely
completion of the Project and compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, or
Program Requirements and guidelines or other State requirements. Such records shall be made
available for random audit and review by the State but generally the Authority will provide at least
24 hour advance notice of any review to be completed during business hours. Any deficiencies
noted during the review must be fully cured within 30 days of notification, unless otherwise
specified and prior to close out of the Grant. Failure to comply with these requirements will
constitute a violation of this Agreement, and the Grantee will be subject to sanctions as specified
in this Agreement.

Section 22: PERFORMANCE. The Grantee shall become fully acquainted with the conditions
related to the scope of work and other conditions contained in this Agreement. The failure or
omission of the Grantee to become acquainted with these conditions shall not relieve it of any
obligation with respect to the Grant or this Agreement. By acceptance of the Grant and execution
of this Agreement, the Grantee warrants that it will complete or cause to be completed the Project
as described in the approved Application, including any approved amendments appended hereto.
Should the Grantee fail to cause the completion of all or part of the Project, the Authority shall be
entitled to reimbursement from the Grantee of any Grant funds that were received by the Grantee
for any work that was not performed. The Grantee agrees that it is responsible for providing
matching contributions as approved in the Application, or any amendments appended hereto, and
failure to provide such contributions in the approved amount may result in a pro rata reduction in
the Grant funds.

Section 23: SANCTIONS. If the Grantee fails or refuses at any time to comply with any of the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Authority may take any or all of the following actions
in addition to seeking any other relief that it is entitled to by law or in equity:
e delay payment of Grant funds until all required documentation has been received and
approved;
require repayment of all or a portion of any Grant funds provided;
cancel, terminate, or suspend, in whole or in part, the Grant and this Agreement; or
refrain from extending any further assistance or Grant funds to the Grantee until such time
as the Grantee is in full compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Section 24: TERMINATION. The Authority may, upon written notification to the Grantee,
terminate all or part of the Grant to be provided pursuant to this Agreement for cause or because
of negligence by the Grantee. This Agreement may also be terminated, in whole or in part, with
the mutual consent of the Authority and the Grantee, upon signed written notification.

P-24-5016 Page 6 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

21




Section 25: RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAINTENANCE. Maintenance of facilities, structures,
or other improvements paid for in whole or in part with Grant funds is the sole responsibility of
the Grantee. Neither the Authority nor the State shall have any responsibility whatsoever to
maintain such improvements relating to the Project. The Grantee may assign this responsibility to
a third party with written approval from the Authority.

Section 26: DISCRIMINATION. The Grantee shall not, and shall impose on its Contractors
the obligation not to, discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
race, color, religion, age, sex, national origin, disability or familial status. The Grantee and any
Contractor shall be required to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment
and employees are treated without regard to their race, color, religion, age, sex, national origin,
disability or familial status.

Section 27: SOUTH CAROLINA ILLEGAL IMMIGRATION REFORM ACT. The Grantee
and any Contractors under its supervision are required to comply with the South Carolina Illegal
Immigration Reform Act, requiring verification of lawful presence in the United States of any alien
18 years of age or older who has applied for state or local public benefits, as defined in 8 U.S.C.
Section 1621, or for federal public benefits, as defined in U.S.C. Section 1611.

Section 28: INTEREST OF CERTAIN FEDERAL OR STATE OFFICIALS. No elected or
appointed State or federal official shall be allowed any share or part of this Agreement or to any
benefit arising from the same.

Section 29: CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No member, officer or employee of the Grantee, or
its designees or agents, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the Project is
situated, and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or
responsibilities with respect to the Project during his or her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall
have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for
work to be performed in connection with the Project or this Agreement. The Grantee shall
incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all of its contracts or subcontracts relating to the Project
and this Agreement this provision prohibiting such interest and shall comply with Section 8-13-
100 et. seq. of the Code. The Grantee shall also generally avoid any action that might result in or
create an appearance of conflict.

Section 30: PROHIBITION AGAINST PAYMENTS OF BONUS OR COMMISSION. The
Grant funds provided under this Agreement shall not be used for the payment of any bonus or
commission to a third party for the purpose of obtaining the Authority’s approval of the
Application or any other approval or concurrence of the Authority required under this Agreement.

Section 31: LOBBYING. The Grantee is prohibited from using Grant funds for the purpose of
lobbying the members of the South Carolina General Assembly or a State agency.

Section 32: POLITICAL ACTIVITY. None of the Grant funds or materials, property or
services provided directly or indirectly under this Agreement shall be used for any partisan
political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office or otherwise
in violation of the provisions of Section 8-13-765 of the Code.

P-24-5016 Page 7 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

22




Section 33: LEGAL SERVICES. No attorney-at-law shall be engaged through the use of any
Grant funds provided under this Agreement in any legal action or proceeding against the State, the
Grantee, any local public body or any political subdivision.

Section 34: APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement is made under and shall be construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina, without regard to conflicts of laws
principles. The federal and state courts within the State of South Carolina shall have exclusive
jurisdiction to adjudicate any disputes arising out of or in connection with this Agreement.

Section 35: NOTICES. All notices required or otherwise provided under this Agreement shall
be deemed made upon mailing by first class mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the other party
as follows:

Notices to the Authority shall be sent to:

Ms. Bonnie Ammons

Executive Director

South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority
1201 Main Street, Suite 1600

Columbia, SC 29201

Notices to Grantee shall be sent to:

Mr. John Robinson

Interim County Administrator
Beaufort County

120 Shanklin Road

Beaufort, South Carolina 29906

Section 36: APPROPRIATIONS. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the
parties hereto agree that the Grant funds awarded hereunder are payable by appropriations from
the State. In the event sufficient appropriations, grants, and monies are not made available to the
Authority to pay the compensation and expenses hereunder for any fiscal year, this Agreement
shall terminate without further obligation of the Authority. In such event, the Authority shall
certify to the Grantee the fact that sufficient funds have not been made available to the Authority
to meet the obligations of this Agreement; and such written certification shall be conclusive upon
the parties.

Section 37: CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Any reports, information, data, or other
documentation given to or prepared or assembled by the Grantee under this Agreement which the
Authority requests to be kept confidential shall not be made available to any individual or
organization by the Grantee without the prior written approval of the Authority; provided,
however, that should Grantee be required by law, court order or some other form of compulsory
process to disclose such information, the Grantee will give the Authority timely notice of such
request prior to disclosure of the information.

P-24-5016 Page 8 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

23




Section 38: FREEDOM OF INFORMATION. The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this
Agreement and certain other information related to the Grant Award are or may be subject to public
disclosure to the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) and that the Grantee and the
Authority are required to comply with the provisions of FOIA.

Section 39: COPYRIGHT. No material produced in whole or in part under this Grant shall be
subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The Authority shall have the
unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any
reports, data or other materials prepared under this Agreement.

Section 40: LIABILITY. The Grantee understands that the Authority accepts no liability for
the Project or any responsibility other than its agreement to provide the Grantee the Grant funds
for the Project in the amount of the Grant, insofar as such funds are expended in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. During the Grant Period, the Grantee shall maintain
tort liability insurance or shall have a self-funded and excess liability program with coverage
amounts sufficient to meet the limits set forth under the SC Torts Claims Act in Section 15-78-
120, as may be amended.

Section 41: TERMS AND CONDITIONS. The Authority reserves the right to add or delete
terms and conditions of this Agreement as may be required by revisions and additions to changes
in the requirements, regulations, and laws governing the Authority and any other agency of the
State.

Section 42: SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes illegal,
invalid, or unenforceable in any respect, that provision may be severed and the legality, validity,
and enforceability of the other provisions of this Agreement shall not in any way be affected or
impaired thereby.

Section 43: ASSIGNABILITY: The Grantee shall not assign or transfer any interest in this
Agreement without the prior signed written consent of the Authority.

P-24-5016 Page 9 of 9 10/23

Item 8.

24




~ /=

[ Z
Legend % Southern Beaufort County
Drainage / N @{@@% .
River % V \ v /;5‘/ All]Oy Area
Creek/Stream 5 %
River/Creek/Marsh Bank § ‘
Channel (fka Outfall) \< / '
Channel Pipe y ;
Roadside fg N
: ; . ;
D / \

-

Roadside Pipe

Road Pipe

1
N\
N

Crossline Pipe

Driveway Pipe
"
&

Lateral
Lateral Plpe :\—JENNA-BH:L-RD-'
Access Pipe :: \
Bleeder Pipe | %
3
Roads h
All Others .
" Q\Q
N w\x\'\vv/
COUNTY @%@\»
h
STATE "
PRIVATE
. 4
Easements

8
D)

-

Al-l-JOY-RD

D

Easements /
Parcel Lines / g/
. &
Parcel Lines |
g
L —— —
KIRKS-BLUFF.Rp_|
o
:ﬁ BE—L—L-W@OD-A\/E~ e
: S
[m)
@ 8
Z =
(©] Lm
: B—CRESTYY
<§t V @@D-A\/E\
}\EL-MWO@D-A\/E
EAIR‘W@OD-A\VE"
RIVER-@AKS-GIR\ m
g
(&)
)
Ly
'QT.:
Bf'
& i
oz
EJ
=Y
2
I
(77
’\
\j g’
<<
\ ,9
o
=
4
5
o
o
g
S
o
>
oz
| p—
r |
. %)
= i
oz 2
o
| @ a4
| ) >
g =
g 2
g / L

Created July 22, 2022

OUNTY SOUN

Cat

G

EAUFORT

Prepared by Beaufort County GIS Department

700 1,050 1,400

350 175 O 350
e — — e Feet
_~




<:
KON
4

5 ‘
>{) < ! i
~
. 7 R
Y /
A
i \ /
\ o./
|/

UINARY @@%

ty Map

[
Created September 29, 2021

O

Prepared by Beaufort County GIS Departme

lCint

V

9 S\
> : |
s AL
Ej‘,ﬂfflﬁ,ﬁ%
A, t' ) AV W
” 'm,. ) |
i
s
: AN o
-m_‘:‘.
-41.! xh

-
.IN)_‘\) |’M| ‘lJ mﬂ%ﬁ w{ l‘l]!\H/ ﬂ?ﬁ i\‘h wrlm¢ v_Wl‘ quhull fuw I“r’ A@”}"\y \Il»o{ilﬁl'(

e L e a— ')\\v\a.wﬂ"\gl4 — - cm—

L) Er—— . NO=IFIV:

D & & 5 = = AN

N
N
\ S ¢ A X
N &> £ 2
\ O - o
/57 > N Y A.,
N g S
ZFZA) /S \ /3 " \
\ N Z 7 ~ -
S = = 1 A ¢ -
) 7~ =7 < \
- ~ \




Item 9.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

A Resolution Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to pursue condemnation on parcel R200 011 000
0007 0000 associated with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s Island.

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Meeting 6-24-24

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure
(5 Minutes)

ITEM BACKGROUND:

County Council conditionally accepted Sheppard Road Extension from Duncan O’ Quinn on January 27, 1997.
Mr. O’Quinn met the conditions of acceptance by executing a deed and drainage easement to the County.
The deed was never recorded and Mr. O’Quinn had been paying taxes on parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000
until 2019 when he owed $117.47 and the property went to tax sale. The property was purchased at tax Sale
by Mr. Donald Middleton in October of 2020 for $1,600. The Treasurer executed a deed to Mr. Middleton on
January 12, 2022 recorded in Deed Book 4108 at Pages 1625-1627. Portions of Sheppard Road, Causey Way
and Dock Builders Drive are included in Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 which have been identified as County
Maintained roads. Mr. Middleton approached the Public Works director about purchasing the property. The
legal department and Public Works director determined it was in the best interest of the County to have the
property appraised to determine value. The appraised value of $10,000 was offered to Mr. Middlton who has
not accepted the offer.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

Due to lack of acceptance of appraised value of $10,000, staff is seeking the legal option of condemnation to
resolve the ownership issue of parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000. This agenda item was discussed during
Executive Session of Public Facilities and Safety Committee meeting on August 28, 2023. The item was put on
hold for further discussion with the property owner. The property owner has been unsuccessful in providing
an alternate appraisal and suggested a land swap of equal value. Communication with County legal staff has
determined that no County properties meet the request and recommend moving forward with
condemnation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

510,000 & associated legal fees for condemnation funded by 1000-30-1301-51160

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Approval of condemnation actions to rectify County ownership of parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 associated
with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s Island.

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve/deny/amend Resolution authorizing County Administrator to pursue condemnation on
parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 associated with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on
Lady’s Island

(Next Step) Move action to County Council for public hearing

27




Item 9.

Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 Located on Lady’s Island off Holly Hall RD

1.
| 91 I =
| | | '
—— e ld. | e e 1 s+ 5 —r = po—n 1 — . — I
T |_ 1
- I
[_,I
2 ,{
o = 4 |
o _ 6 |
o L T g 2
™ ' T
€] : . s 19
H o @
| | a o
- o I8
o Sheppard RdA W ... S -
C SHeppara o vy ____.--
- | I | |
l I :
I I |
l | L7 5 4 76
13 11 9 X L
| | | IS
l I : 3
| ! 2
2 T A | P
. . | g
A .
C3usey Way
12 10
16 14 ' I 8 70
Il | |
Cavsey Ny
B . | _ Leafridge Way g -
- _ _______ .ggl
I I e sl

The subject is the Causey Way R.O.W., a portion of the Sheppard Rd. R.O.W., and a
portion of the Dock Builders Dr. R.O.W. as highlighted in yellow. These were previously

dirt roads, but were paved sometime in 1997. The are no curbs, gutters or sidewalks.

28




RESOLUTION NO. 2024/

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR TO PURSUE CONDEMNATION OF PARCEL
R200-011-000-0007-0000 ASSOCIATED WITH SHEPPARD ROAD,

CAUSEY WAY AND DOCK BUILDERS DRIVE ON LADYS ISLAND

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council conditionally accepted Sheppard
Road Extension from Duncan O’ Quinn on January 27, 1997.; and

WHEREAS, Mr. O’Quinn met the conditions of acceptance by
executing a deed and drainage easement to the County. The deed was never
recorded and Mr. O’Quinn had been paying taxes on parcel R200 011 000 0007
0000 until 2019 when he owed $117.47 and the property went to tax sale.; and

WHEREAS, the property was purchased at tax Sale by Mr. Donald
Middleton in October of 2020 for $1,600.00, The Treasurer executed a deed to
Mr. Middleton on January 12, 2022 recorded in Deed Book 4108 at Pages 1625-

1627.; and

WHEREAS, Portions of Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock
Builders Drive are included in Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 which have been

identified as County Maintained roads; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Middleton approached the Public Works director about
purchasing the property. The legal department and Public Works director
determined it was in the best interest of the County to have the property appraised
to determine value; and

WHEREAS, the appraised value of $10,000 was offered to Mr. MiddIton
who has not accepted the offer.; and

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council believes that it is in the best
interest of its citizens to pursue condemnation on parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000
associated with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s
Island.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County
Council hereby authorizes the Interim County Administrator to pursue
condemnation on parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 associated with Sheppard
Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s Island.

Page | of2

Item 9.

29




ADOPTED this day of

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council

, 2024,

By:

Item 9.

Joseph Passiment, Chairman

Page | of2

30




SEAUFORT )

UNTY SOUN

gtu outte

:
5  Beaufort County Council Statement of Conflict of Interest
Pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws § 8-13-700

I E Dey At i o-/O i) , holding the position as a Beaufort County Council

Member, do hereby declare my potential conflict of interest with regards to the below information:

1. Describe the matter pending before County Council with which you may have a conflict of
—_ il 5 4 ') !
interest: _L- \zfm J:Z / = OFC. 6;9%2%) — \lq (ce- K & '\O'\ OJ(DO’) 0’%)7
jz'lé? JO.--?Z"W/() Rc«@ P AN 3 ’vat \'\1 JDDC /K ' ,I'L’“ fo/e/, 9 "‘( ? vy :’w s 74—“'“1
i P R e

Y

A N

2. Describe the interest that you have that may give rise to the conflict: | fofe-7°C Ovwne

i a N
m%boiezﬂ[w&,_w[o/ ;é% N jv (- fQLC«f»/\hf_. L CJ%/

/.

ot (,\_Hg//v‘ J’ 74\"?"-7 ()O ) (/61 AP} T‘{ (OMQ'— ,ZF'“' & }0~ A‘
/

Based upon the above information, I hereby recues myself from participating in any discussions of or

taking official action relating to said matter.

— N
Signed this ;Qf(:%day of v ,20 % ‘:f’
N} 7 <!:/ :"/ )
Ll IS
Signature /é’f’

31




Item 10.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT FAA BIL AIRPORT TERMINAL PROGRAM GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$5,000,000 FOR HXD TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS - CONTINGENT UPON FINAL FAA OFFER

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Public Facilities and Safety Committee; June 24, 2024

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Jon Rembold; Airports Director

3 minutes

ITEM BACKGROUND:

This grant was awarded as part of the 2021 Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) that provides for competitive
grants for airport terminal projects. The funds will allow the project team to expand the first phase of the
project, currently under construction, adding to the benefits that will be enjoyed by the airport’s customers.

Beaufort County Airports Board approved the proposed resolution to accept the funding during its regular
meeting on June 20, 2024.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

The additional funding provided by the grant enables the airport to deliver more benefit to the customers in
this initial phase of the terminal improvements project. Some of the key items include:

e Two additional passenger boarding bridges

e An additional passenger screening lane at the new TSA checkpoint

e Increased circulation space in the existing lobby and ticketing areas

e Renovation of all restrooms on the pre-screening side of the terminal

e Installation of additional aircraft apron lighting

e Additional gate area furniture and finishes

FISCAL IMPACT:

The BIL ATP program provides 95% of the project funding ($5,000,000) of the funding, and airport operations
will fund 5% ($263,158).

Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Staff recommends acceptance of FAA BIL ATP Grant in the amount of $5,000,000 for HXD Terminal
Improvements — contingent upon final FAA offer

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve/deny acceptance of FAA BIL ATP Grant in the amount of $5,000,000 for HXD Terminal
Improvements — contingent upon final FAA offer

Move forward to Council for Approval on July 8, 2024

32




RESOLUTION 2024/

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA BIPARTISAN INFRASTRUCTURE LAW (BIL)
AIRPORT TERMINAL PROGRAM (ATP) GRANT FOR THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND
AIRPORT (HXD) AIRPORT TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

WHEREAS, as part of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law passed in November, 2021, there
exists competitive grant opportunities to fund airport terminal projects; and

WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island submitted a competitive application with the goal of
securing additional funding for the terminal project at HXD, and received $5 million in funding
through the BIL ATP program; and

WHEREAS, the items to be funded with these grant funds were part of the June 2023
Phase | Terminal Improvements Project bid as alternate items but are not currently funded in the
construction program; and

WHEREAS, the completion of these usable units of work will provide an improved level
of service for commercial service passengers and enhance safety for aircraft using HXD; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly
assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to accept FAA BIL ATP Grant
Funding for Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) Terminal Construction Project.

Adopted this day of , 2024.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph Passiment, Chairman
ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 10.

33




OMB Number: 4
Expiration Date: 11

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Item 10.

*1. Type of Submission: *2. Type of Application  * |f Revision, select appropriate letter(s):
|:| Preapplication |:| New
Application [] Continuation * Other (Specify)

[L] changed/Corrected Application | [] Revision

*3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:
HXD

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: *5b. Federal Award Identifier:
3-45-0030-XXX-2024

State Use Only:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a. Legal Name: Beaufort County, South Carolina

*b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c. UEL:
57-6000311 XFSKWHHQMF58
d. Address:
*Street 1: 120 Beach City Road
Street 2:
*City: Hilton Head Island
County/Parish: Beaufort
*State: SC
*Province:
. USA: United States
Country:

*Zip / Postal Code 29926-0000

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name:
Department of Airports Hilton Head Island Airport

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: Mr. *First Name: Jonathan

Middle Name: P

*Last Name: Rembold

Suffix:

Title: Director of Airports

Organizational Affiliation:

*Telephone Number: 843-255-2952 Fax Number: 843-255-9434

*Email: jrembold@bcgov.net

34




Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Item 10.

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
B: County Government

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:
Pick an applicant type

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:
Pick an applicant type

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:

Federal Aviation Administration

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:
20.106

CFDA Title:
Airport Improvement Program

*12. Funding Opportunity Number:

*Title:
BIL ATP

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):
Town of Hilton Head Island, Beaufort County, South Carolina

*15. Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:
Terminal Construction

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

35




Item 10.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:
*a. Applicant: SC-001 *b. Program/Project: SC-001

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

17. Proposed Project:
*a. Start Date: 08/01/2024 *b. End Date: 09/30/2025

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a. Federal 5000000
*b. Applicant 263158
*c. State 0
*d. Local 0
*e. Other 0
*f. Program Income 0
*g. TOTAL 5263158

*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

[] a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

O b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.
O c Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

*20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?
[] Yes No

If “Yes”, explain:

21. *By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

| | AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or
agency specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Prefix: Mr. *First Name: Jonathan
Middle Name: P

*Last Name: Rembold
Suffix:

*Title: Director of Airports

*Telephone Number: 843-255-2952 Fax Number: 843-255-9424

* Email:jrembold@bcgov.net

*Signature of Authorized Representative: JON Rembold, C.M. D 5094 02 51 10,0648 0r00 | *Date Signed: May 31, 2024

36



JudyElder
Inserted Text
	P	

JudyElder
Inserted Text
	


HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD)
PROGRAM NARRATIVE

3-45-0030-XXX-2024
BIL ATP

Item 10.

As part of the ongoing terminal expansion project at HXD, Beaufort County received $5 million
in funding through the BIL ATP program. The items below were part of the June 2023 program
bid as alternate items but are not currently funded in the construction program. These useable
units of work will be funded by this grant. The costs are shown using a 95 percent BIL ATP funding

share and a 5 percent airport funding obligation.

DESCRIPTION TOTAL
Bid Alternate No. 1B - Gate 2 Aircraft Gate Equipment To Include 2A $35,000 $1.414,000.00
Spare Parts Allowance e
Bid Alternate No. 1c - Gate 3 Aircraft Gate Equipment To Include 2A $35,000 $1.502,000.00
Spare Parts Allowance SRR
Bid Alternate No. 2 - Furniture Allowance $42,361.46
Bid Alternate No. 3 - Alternate Canopy Entrance $1,121,000.00
Bid Alternate No. 5 - Seal/Rejuvenate Existing Asphalt Parking Pavement To $30.832.00
Remain After Demolition-Landside T
Bid Alternate No. 6 - Non-Reflectorized White Pavement Marking Of Existing
Parking Spaces To Remain In Existing Asphalt Parking Pavement After $4,588.50
Sealing/Rejuvenating- Landside
Bid Alternate No. 8 - Second Manned Checkpoint Lane $106,000.00
Bid Alternate No. 12 - 3-Luminaire Led Apron Floodlight Pole With 35-Ft $76,000.00
Mounting Height, Complete T
Bid Alternate No. 13 - 2-Luminaire Led Apron Floodlight Pole With 35-Ft $76,000.00

Mounting Height, Complete

Non-Secure Restrooms Renovation

$890,375.93

TOTAL | $5,263,157.89
Estimated Cost: $5,263,157.89
FAA BIL Cost: $5,000,000.00
Project Total Federal State Local
BIL ATP $5,263,157.89 | $5,000,000.00 $0.00 | $263,157.89

37




Item 11.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,993,835 FOR HXD TAXIWAY “F”
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION — CONSTRUCTION AND CONSTRUCTION ADMIN - CONTINGENT UPON FINAL
FAA OFFER

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Public Facilities and Safety Committee; June 24, 2024

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Jon Rembold; Airports Director

3 minutes

ITEM BACKGROUND:

This grant will fund the Taxiway F Rehabilitation project.

Beaufort County Airports Board approved the proposed resolution to accept the funding during its regular
meeting on June 20, 2024.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

Taxiway “F” is the commercial airline taxiway at the Hilton Head Island Airport. As such, it is a critical piece of
the national transportation system, and it plays a crucial role in providing commercial airline service to Hilton
Head Island and Beaufort County. Pavement maintenance is one of the guarantees the County makes to the
FAA when accepting grant funds. A recent pavement analysis found that the taxiway needs rehabilitation.
This project addresses that need and satisfies the FAA requirement.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The FAA will provide 90% ($2,993,835) of the total project cost, and the SCAC will fund 10% ($332,648).

Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130 (This line item provides initial funding since all grants are
reimbursable)

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Staff recommends acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $2,993,835 for HXD Taxiway “F” Pavement
Rehabilitation — Construction and Construction Admin contingent upon final FAA offer

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve/deny acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $2,993,835 for HXD Taxiway “F”
Pavement Rehabilitation — Construction and Construction Admin contingent upon final FAA offer

Move forward to Council for Approval on July 8, 2024

38




RESOLUTION 2024/

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT FUNDING FOR THE HILTON HEAD
ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) TAXIWAY F REHABILITATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island Airport Taxiway F rehabilitation is necessary to
comply with the Federal Grant Sponsor Assurance that requires airfield pavement maintenance;
and

WHEREAS, the Taxiway F rehabilitation will provide enhanced safety and service life
for the commercial airline taxiway at HXD; and

WHEREAS, the project will include the overlay of the existing taxiway, new pavement
markings, required edge light adjustments, sediment/erosion control; and

WHEREAS, this project includes construction and construction administration services
for the rehabilitation of Taxiway F; and

WHEREAS, the total FAA grant is $2,993,835.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly
assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to accept FAA Grant Funding for
Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) Taxiway F Rehabilitation project.

Adopted this day of , 2024.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph Passiment, Chairman
ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 11.

39




OMB Number: 4
Expiration Date: 11

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Item 11.

*1. Type of Submission:

|:| Preapplication

Application

|:| Changed/Corrected Application

*2. Type of Application
New
[] Continuation

[] Revision

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify)

*3. Date Received: 4.

Applicant Identifier:
HXD

5a. Federal Entity Identifier:
3-45-0030-XXX-2024

*5b. Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only:

6. Date Received by State:

7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a. Legal Name: Beaufort County, South Carolina

*b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c. UEL:
57-6000311 XFSKWHHQMF58
d. Address:
*Street 1: 120 Beach City Road
Street 2:
*City: Hilton Head Island
County/Parish: Beaufort
*State: SC
*Province:
. USA: United States
Country:

*Zip / Postal Code 29926-0000

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name:
Department of Airports

Division Name:
Hilton Head Island Airport

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: Mr. *First Name: Jon
Middle Name:

*Last Name: Rembold

Suffix:

Title: Director of Airports

Organizational Affiliation:

*Telephone Number: 843-255-2952

Fax Number: 843-255-9434

*Email: jrembold@bcgov.net

40




Item 11.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
B: County Government

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:
Pick an applicant type

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:
Pick an applicant type

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:

Federal Aviation Administration

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:
20.106

CFDA Title:
Airport Improvement Program

*12. Funding Opportunity Number:

*Title:
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

*15. Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:
Taxiway F Strengthening (Construction)

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 41




Item 11.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:
*a. Applicant: SC-001 *b. Program/Project: SC-001

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

17. Proposed Project:
*a. Start Date: 03/31/2024 *b. End Date: 09/30/2025

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a. Federal 2993835.
*b. Applicant 0
*c. State 332648.
*d. Local 0
*e. Other 0
*f. Program Income 0
*g. TOTAL 3326483

*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

[] a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

O b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.
O c Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

*20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?
[] Yes No

If “Yes”, explain:

21. *By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** | AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or
agency specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Prefix: Mr. *First Name: Jon
Middle Name:

*Last Name: Rembold

Suffix:

*Title: Director of Airports

*Telephone Number: 843-255-2952 Fax Number: 843-255-9424

* Email:jrembold@bcgov.net

*Signature of Authorized Representative: JON Rembold, C.M. D 5054 00 29 149658 or00 | *Date Signed: 5/22/2024

42




HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD)

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

3-45-0030-XXX-2024 (BIL)

Taxiway F Rehabilitation (Construction): The project includes construction and construction
administration services for the rehabilitation of Taxiway F. The project will include the overlay of

the existing taxiway, grooving of the overlay, new pavement markings, construct paved shoulders
along the taxiway, required edge light adjustments, sediment/erosion control.

Construction Administration Services (Talbert, Bright & Ellington) $154,883.00
Construction (APAC-Atlantic, Inc.) $3,171,600.00
TOTAL $3,326,483.00
FAA BIL $2,993,835.00
SCAC $332,648.00
Local $0.00
TOTAL $3,326,483.00

Estimated Cost: $3,326,483.00

FAA BIL Cost: $2,993,835.00

Project Total Federal

State Local

Taxiway F Rehabilitation (Construction) $3,326,483.00 | $2,993,835.00 | $332,648.00 $0.00

Item 11.

43




&

Engineering & Planning Consultants

May 3, 2023

Mr. Jon Rembold, C.M.
Airports Director

Hilton Head Island Airport
120 Beach City Road

Hilton Head Island, SC 29926

RE: Bid Summary and
Contract Award Recommendation
Taxiway ‘F’ Strengthening
Hilton Head Island Airport
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina
TBE Project No.2119-2101

Dear Mr. Rembold,

A total of one (1) responsive bid was received for the above project on May 3, 2023. A copy of
the bid tabulation is attached and a summary of the bid results is provided below:

Bidder Total Bid Amount
APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Savannah, GA $3,171,600.00

We have reviewed the bids received and have found APAC-Atlantic, Inc to be the lowest
responsive bidder. APAC-Atlantic, Inc. is also proposing to subcontract 5.15% of the total bid
amount to certified DBE firms, which exceeds the 5.1% DBE goal established for this project.
We recommend award of the construction contract for this project to APAC-Atlantic, Inc. for
the total bid amount of $3,171,600.00. The Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Construction Cost
for this project was $2,883,300.00.

If you should have any questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

J. Andrew Shook, P.E.

Attachment

cc: Mr. Dave Thomas (w/attachment)

3525 Whitehall Park Drive, Suite 210 Charlotte, NC 28273 Tel: 704.426.6070
Charlotte, NC  Columbia, SC  Atlanta, GA

Item 11.

44




BID TABULATION

TAXIWAY 'F' STRENGTHENING
HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
TBE PROJECT NO. 2119-2101

Item 11.

MAY 3, 2023
APAC-ATLANTIC, INC. ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
SAVANNAH, GA
BASE BID LICENSE NO.: 12050
ITEM| SPEC
NO. NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXT. TOTAL UNIT PRICE EXT. TOTAL
1 C-100 |CONTRACTOR QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM (CQCP) 1 LS $95,000.00 95,000.00 $75,000.00 75,000.00
2 C-102 |TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK 4,000 LF $5.10 20,400.00 $4.00 16,000.00
3 C-102 |TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 2 EA $5,000.00 10,000.00 $3,000.00 6,000.00
4 C-102 |TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK INLET PROTECTION 6 EA $375.00 $2,250.00 $800.00 4,800.00
5 C-105 |MOBILIZATION 1 LS $312,000.00 312,000.00 $230,800.00 230,800.00
6 P-101 [VARIABLE DEPTH COLD MILLING 5,000 SY $25.00 125,000.00 $20.00 100,000.00
7 P-101 |CRACK REPAIR - WIDTH 1/4" TO 2" 5,000 LF $3.20 16,000.00 $4.00 $20,000.00
8 P-101 |[CRACK REPAIR - WIDTH GREATER THAN 2" 100 LF $250.00 25,000.00 60.00 $6,000.00
9 P-152 |SHOULDER BUILDUP 11,900 LF $3.00 35,700.00 20.00 $238,000.00
10 P-401 |[BITUMINOUS ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE 5,000 TN $430.00 $2,150,000.00 $235.00 $1,175,000.00
11 P-603 [EMULSIFIED ASPHALT TACK COAT 4,100 GAL $6.00 24,600.00 $4.00 $16,400.00
12 P-610 [CONCRETE MANHOLE RIM PROTECTION 7 EA $12,650.00 88,550.00 $800.00 $5,600.00
13 P-620 |TEMPORARY MARKING 6,900 SF 4.50 31,050.00 3.00 20,700.00
14 P-620 |PAVEMENT MARKING (REFLECTORIZED) 6,900 SF 2.00 13,800.00 5.00 34,500.00
15 P-620 |PAVEMENT MARKING (NON-REFLECTORIZED BLACK) 10,800 SF 0.75 8,100.00 5.00 54,000.00
16 HA HERBICIDE APPLICATION 1 LS 2,575.00 2,575.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
17 T-901 |[TEMPORARY SEEDING (MULCHED) 5 AC 1,695.00 8,475.00 1,600.00 8,000.00
18 T-901 [PERMANENT SEEDING (MULCHED) 4 AC 3,180.00 $12,720.00 2,400.00 9,600.00
19 T-904 |PERMANENT BAHIA SOD 106,000 SF $1.08 $114,480.00 $8.00 $848,000.00
20 L-125 |ADJUST EXISTING TAXIWAY LIGHT 33 EA $2,300.00 $75,900.00 $300.00 $9,900.00
TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT $3,171,600.00 $2,883,300.00
DBE SUBCONTRACTOR AMOUNT $163,300.00 $0.00
DBE PERCENTAGE OF BASE BID AMOUNT 5.15% 0.00%
| HEREBY CERTIFY THIS TABULATION OF BIDS TO BE CORRECT.
7 ' 515/2083
TALBER, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON, INC. DATE

45




HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
WORK AUTHORIZATION 23-02
May 3, 2023
PROJECT NO.: TBI NO. 2119-2302

It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of our Contract for
Professional Services.

Description of Work: The scope of the project is to strengthen Taxiway F. The bid documents
include a bituminous overlay of the existing pavement. Also included in the project are new
pavement markings; shoulder buildup along the edge of pavement; sodding the shoulder; required
edge light elevation adjustments to the new shoulder elevation; and sediment and erosion control
measures. The approximate limits of the overlay work areas are depicted on the project sketch
within this Work Authorization.

Construction Administration (CA), resident project representative (RPR), and quality assurance
(QA) testing services for the taxiway pavement rehabilitation project will be performed as part of
this Work Authorization. The CA services will include the following: preparing and distributing
Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications; coordinating and conducting the
preconstruction meeting; preparing and distributing preconstruction minutes; coordinate project
schedule; review submittals; attend and conduct bi-weekly construction meetings; review and
coordinate field changes; review QA test results; process requests for partial payments; attend final
inspection; prepare the final punch list; develop project record drawings; prepare the final
Engineer’s Report. TBE will provide a full-time RPR throughout the entirety of the project. This
RPR will be on-site at all times that the contractor is performing work.

TBE will assist with/prepare FAA grant fund requests and quarterly status reports for execution
by the Airport staff. TBE will also assist with/prepare grant closeout documentation required by
the FAA for this project.

BASIC SERVICES

CONSTRUCTION PHASE:

The construction phase services for this project includes preparation and distribution of contract
documents and Released For Construction plans and specifications to the Contractor, coordinating
and conducting the Preconstruction Conference meeting and preparation of minutes, review of
project schedule submitted by Contractor, coordination and review of Contractor submittals,
Construction visits/Progress Meetings outlines and meeting minutes, review field change requests
and related correspondence, prepare and distribute general construction correspondence
throughout the project, review quality acceptance test results, review and process Contractor pay
requests, conduct a Final Inspection and prepare/distribute punch list items letter, develop record

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2302
1

Item 11.

46




Item 11.

drawings, assist Hilton Head Island Airport with Grant Closeout and prepare Grant closeout
paperwork.

The intended deliverables for these services shall include:

e PDF versions of Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications.
e PDF versions of record drawing plan sheets and specifications.
e PDF version of final Engineer’s Report

SPECIAL SERVICES

Task 1 — Full-Time Resident Project Representative (RPR)
A full-time resident project representative will be provided to observe the construction and other
responsibilities.

Task 2 — Quality Assurance Testing

Quality assurance and acceptance testing required by the project specifications for this project will
be provided. Reports of the tests performed will be provided, along with a summary of all tests
performed at project closeout.

Task 3 — A-Built Survey
An as-built survey for this project will be provided.

Estimated Time Schedule: Work shall be completed in accordance with the schedule established
and agreed upon by the Owner and Engineer.

Cost of Services: The method of payment shall be in accordance with Article 6 — Compensation
of the contract. The work shall be performed in accordance with the Master Contract as a lump
sum of $49,645.00. Special services shall be performed on a not to exceed basis with a budget of
$105.238.00, which includes reimbursable expenses. For a total of $154.883.00.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2302
2

47




Agreed as to Scope of Services, Time Schedule and Budget:

Item 11.

APPROVED: APPROVED:

BEAUFORT COUNTY TALBERT, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON,
INC.
Vice President

Title Title:

Date: Date:

Witness: Witness:

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2302

3

48




Item 11.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

49

Work Authorization 2119-2302




SUMMARY OF FEES

TAXIWAY F STRENGTHENING
HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA

FAA PROJECT NO:
CLIENT PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2302

May 3, 2023

DESCRIPTION
BASIC SERVICES

PROJECT FORMULATION/DEVELOPMENT PHASE (01)

DESIGN PHASE (04)
BIDDING PHASE (05)

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE (06)

EXPENSES
SUBCONSULTANTS

INSPECTION - RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL

Item 11.

ESTIMATED
$ -
$ -
3 i
$  46,870.00
$  46,870.00
$ 277500
$  51,550.00
$  53,688.00
$  108.013.00
$  154,883.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2302
5

50




Item 11.

MANHOUR ESTIMATE

TAXIWAY F STRENGTHENING

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
FAAPROJECT NO:

CLIENT PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2302

May 3, 2023

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE (06)

DESCRIPTION PRIN SPM PM SP E5 E2 ADS TS
$ 290 3 250 $220 $175 $180 $110 S$140 $150

Coordinate award of contract 2 2 2 0 0 0 0 0
Coordinate/ conduct preconstruction 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0
Preconstruction minutes 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
Coordinate project schedule 0 6 0 0 0 8 0 0
Coordinate submittals 0 4 6 0 0 8 0 0
Construction visits 0 40 0 0 0 16 0 0
Construction observation reports 2 10 0 0 0 4 0 0
Review/coordinate field changes 1 8 4 0 0 6 0 0
Construction correspondence 0 8 0 0 0 4 0 0
Grant administration 0 0 4 8 0 0 0 0
Process requests for partial payment 0 12 0 0 0 6 0 0
Review test results/PWL calculations 0 16 0 0 0 8 0 0
Final inspection 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0
Develop record drawings & Final Report 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 6
MANHOUR TOTAL 5 132 16 8 0 60 [ 6
DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:
CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.

RATE MHRS COST
Principal PRIN 3$ 290 58 1,450
Senior Project Manager SPM $ 250 132 8 33,000
Project Manager PM $ 220 16 $ 3,520
Senior Planner SP $ 175 8 8 1,400
Engineer V E5 $ 180 0s -
Engineer 1T E2 $ 110 60 § 6,600
Admin. Assistant V ADS $ 140 03 -
Technician V T5 3 150 6 8 900

Total 227
SUBTOTAL § 46,870.00
DIRECT EXPENSES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT ESTIMATED ESTIMATED

RATE UNITS COST
Telephone LS $ 150.00 1 $ 150.00
Postage LS ) 125.00 1 $ 125.00
Miscellaneous expenses LS 3 900.00 1 $ 900.00
(prints, faxes, copies)

Travel LS 3 1,600.00 1 $  1,600.00
SUBTOTAL § 277500
SCOPE OF SUCONTRACTED SERVICES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.

RATE UNITS COST
Quality Acceptance Testing LS $32,000.00 1 $  32,000.00
As-Built Survey LS $19,550.00 1 8 19,550.00
SUBTOTAL § 51,550.00
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION ADMIN. COST: $ 101,195.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2302

6 51




Item 11.

MANHOUR ESTIMATE

TAXTWAY F STRENGTHENING

HILTON HEAD ISLAND ATRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CARCLINA
FAAPROIECT NO:

CLIENT PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2302

May 3, 2023

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE (PHASE 51)

CALENDAR DAYS 33

DESCRIPTION RPR

$ 90

Project review 4

Site mobilization 4

On site inspection 330

Final inspection 8

Follow up inspection 50

Site demobilization 4

MANHOUR TOTAL 400

DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:

CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.
RATE MHRS COST

RESIDENT PROJECT RPR 3 118 400 $ 47,200

REPRESENTATIVE (RPR) Total 400

SUBTOTAL $ 4720000

DIRECT EXPENSES:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST

Telephone Ls 3 100 1 3 100.00

Postage Ls 3§ 100 1 $ 100.00

Miscellaneous expenses Ls 3 250 1 $ 250.00

(prints, faxes, copies, photos)

Travel Ls 3§ 300 1 3 300.00

SUBTOTAL b 750.00

PER DIEM:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST

DAILY PER DIEM PD 3§ 151 38 8 5,738

Total 38
SUBTOTAL b 5,738.00
TOTAL INSPECTION COST: $  53,688.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2302

7 52




Item 12.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $137,209 FOR HXD AIRFIELD DRAINAGE
IMPROVEMENTS — DESIGN AND BIDDING CONTINGENT UPON FINAL FAA OFFER

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Public Facilities and Safety Committee; June 24, 2024

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Jon Rembold; Airports Director

3 minutes

ITEM BACKGROUND:

This grant will fund the Airfield Drainage Improvements project design and bidding. This is a time-sensitive,
mandatory safety project.

Beaufort County Airports Board approved the proposed resolution to accept the funding during its regular
meeting on June 20, 2024.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

The Hilton Head Island Airport's airport reference code has changed which also changed some of the
dimensions of protective areas on the field. One of those areas, the runway safety area, was expanded.
Consequently, several drainage structures that previously were located outside the runway safety area are
now in that area. As such, they are subject to stricter standards and must be upgraded. This mandatory safety
project will provide the engineering design and bidding services for the structures. This project is eligible for
funding through the FAA. Following bidding, a separate construction phase grant will be coordinated with the
FAA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The FAA will provide 90% ($137,209) of the funding, and airport operations will fund 10% ($15,245). FAA
funds for this project are already budgeted in the FAA account.

Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Staff recommends acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $137,209 for HXD Airfield Drainage
Improvements — Design and Bidding contingent upon final FAA offer

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve/deny acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $137,209 for HXD Airfield Drainage
Improvements — Design and Bidding contingent upon final FAA offer Move forward to Council for Approval on
July 8, 2024

53




RESOLUTION 2024/

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT FOR THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND
AIRPORT (HXD) AIRFIELD DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island Airport's airport reference code has been increased
from C-II to C-l1ll, and the width of the runway safety area has been increased from 400 feet to
500 feet; and

WHEREAS, several drainage structures are located within the redefined runway safety
area and need to be strengthened to support the design aircraft; and

WHEREAS, this project involves the design and bidding efforts associated with the
project; and

WHEREAS, the FAA has determined the project is justified and is eligible for grant
funding; and

WHEREAS, the grant will be used to fund the design and bidding of the airfield drainage
improvement project at the Hilton Head Island Airport. The total FAA grant is $137,2009.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly
assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to accept FAA Grant for the Hilton
Head Island Airport (HXD) Airfield Drainage Improvement project.

Adopted this day of , 2024.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph Passiment, Chairman
ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 12.

54




OMB Number: 4
Expiration Date: 11

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Item 12.

*1. Type of Submission: *2. Type of Application  * |f Revision, select appropriate letter(s):
|:| Preapplication |:| New
Application [] Continuation * Other (Specify)

[L] changed/Corrected Application | [] Revision

*3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:
HXD

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: *5b. Federal Award Identifier:
3-45-0030-XXX-2024

State Use Only:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a. Legal Name: Beaufort County, South Carolina

*b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c. UEL:
57-6000311 XFSKWHHQMF58
d. Address:
*Street 1: 120 Beach City Road
Street 2:
*City: Hilton Head Island
County/Parish: Beaufort
*State: SC
*Province:
. USA: United States
Country:

*Zip / Postal Code 29926-0000

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name:
Department of Airports Hilton Head Island Airport

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: Mr. *First Name: Jonathan

Middle Name: P

*Last Name: Rembold

Suffix:

Title: Director of Airports

Organizational Affiliation:

*Telephone Number: 843-2552952 Fax Number: 843-255-9434

*Email: jrembold@bcgov.net

55




Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Item 12.

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
B: County Government

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:
Pick an applicant type

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:
Pick an applicant type

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:

Federal Aviation Administration

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:
20.106

CFDA Title:
Airport Improvement Program

*12. Funding Opportunity Number:

*Title:
BIL AIG

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):
Town of Hilton Head Island, Beaufort County South Carolina

*15. Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:
Airfield Drainage (Design and Bidding)

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

56




Item 12.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:
*a. Applicant: SC-001 *b. Program/Project: SC-001

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

17. Proposed Project:
*a. Start Date: 08/01/2024 *b. End Date: 06/30/2025

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a. Federal 137209
*b. Applicant 15245
*c. State 0
*d. Local 0
*e. Other 0
*f. Program Income 0
*g. TOTAL 152454

*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

[] a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

O b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.
O c Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

*20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?
[] Yes No

If “Yes”, explain:

21. *By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** | AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or
agency specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Prefix: Mr. *First Name: Jonathan
Middle Name: P

*Last Name: Rembold
Suffix:

*Title: Director of Airports

*Telephone Number: 843-255-2952 Fax Number: 843-255-9424

* Email:jrembold@bcgov.net

*Signature of Authorized Representative: JON Rembold, C.M. D 5094 00.03 10554 or00 | *Date Signed: 6/3/2024

57




HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
WORK AUTHORIZATION 24-02
May 23, 2024
PROJECT NO.: TBE NO. 2119-2402

It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of our Contract
for Professional Services.

Item 12.

Description of Work: The scope of the project is to strengthen several of the stormwater
drainage inlet structures within the Runway 3/21 safety area at Hilton Head Island Airport. The
airport reference code at the Hilton Head Island Airport has been increased from C-1l to C-lll with
a corresponding increase in the width of the runway safety area from 400 feet to 500 feet. Several
drainage structures are now located within the runway safety area that need to be strengthened
to support the design aircraft. The locations of the drainage structures are depicted on the
project sketch within this Work Authorization.

The existing inlet structures in question will be analyzed and a retrofit design will be developed
based on the requirements of A/C 150-5320-6G — Airport Pavement Design and Evaluation,
Appendix B Design of Structures. The goal of the retrofit will be to strengthen the existing inlet
structure to safely carry aircraft loading while minimizing the interruption to Aircraft Operations.
Based on previous experience, structural retrofit is expected to entail the replacement of the
existing grates and top concrete slab; and the addition of a concrete slab/apron around the
existing inlet to redistribute the aircraft load around the adjacent soil. Also, the existing drainage
RCP pipes will be analyzed to ensure they can withstand aircraft loading.

Construction Administration (CA), resident project representative (RPR), and quality assurance
(QA) testing services for the drainage structure strengthening project will be performed as part
of this Work Authorization. The CA services will include the following: preparing and distributing
Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications; coordinating and conducting the
preconstruction meeting; preparing and distributing preconstruction minutes; coordinate project
schedule; review submittals; attend and conduct bi-weekly construction meetings; review and
coordinate field changes; review QA test results; process requests for partial payments; attend
final inspection; prepare the final punch list; develop project record drawings; prepare the final
Engineer’s Report. TBE will provide a full-time RPR throughout the entirety of the project. This
RPR will be on-site at all times that the contractor is performing work.

During the implementation phase of the structural retrofit, all work will be performed per A/C
150/5370-2G — Operational Safety on Airports During Construction.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402
1

58




TBE will assist with/prepare FAA grant fund requests and quarterly status reports for execution
by the Airport staff. TBE will also assist with/prepare grant closeout documentation required by
the FAA for this project.

Professional services to be provided by Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. (TBE) will include civil and
survey services required to accomplish the following items:

PHASE 01 - Project Formulation/Development

The preliminary design phase is intended to identify and evaluate alternatives to assure cost
effective and practical solutions for the work items identified. TBE will complete its evaluation of
alternatives through contacts with local authorities, field investigations, and a practical design
approach. The design will take advantage of local knowledge and experience and utilize expertise
from recent construction projects to design a cost-effective project and ensure competitive
construction bids. Bids will adhere to the purchasing and procurement policies set forth by
Beaufort County, as well as local and state laws. Activities include:

a. Conduct a project kick-off meeting. Attendees will be Beaufort County, FAA, design team,
and airport tenants.

b. Coordinate with the following agencies for necessary permits related to the proposed
improvements for this project:

- SCDHEC-OCRM NPDES Permit (to be applied for during design)

- Town of Hilton Head Island Design Plan Review Permit (to support construction
activity, includes Town departments [Natural Resources, Engineering, Emergency —
EMS/Fire, Planning, etc.] to be applied for during design)

- FAA and Beaufort County Engineering (plan review, to be performed during design)

c. Prepare a preliminary estimate of probable construction costs and schematic design for
each element of the project.

d. Prepare an overall construction and safety phasing plan in order to maximize project
constructability and minimize interference with airport operations.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402
2

Item 12.

59




PHASE 04 — Preliminary Design

a.

Layout and design of new aircraft-rated stormwater inlet drainage structures.

Design of erosion and sediment control devices.

Review original design plans for existing pavement thickness within the project limits and
compare with pavement thickness from proposed geotechnical borings.

Complete necessary site surveying to determine existing pipe sizes and inverts. Survey is
not required to be in accordance with FAA AC 150/5300-18B and related advisory
circulars.

Provide recommendations for construction phasing to the sponsor and airline tenants for
their review.

Prepare preliminary engineering report.

Meet with Sponsor/FAA to review project after preliminary engineering report submittal,
and at 60 percent and 90 percent completion (3 meetings).

Complete estimates of probable construction costs for the recommended alternatives.

Solicit comments on preliminary design from airport personnel and FAA.

PHASE 04 - Final Design

a.

Incorporate preliminary design comments and respond as necessary to requests for
additional information.

Provide final design drawings, specifications, and final estimate of probable construction
costs and schedule for the project.

Develop specifications using FAA AC 150/5370-10, "Standards for Specifying Construction
of Airports," as amended, and utilize standard provisions supplied by the sponsor, as
necessary.

Development of construction safety and phasing plan in accordance with FAA AC
150/5370-2, "Operational Safety on Airports during Construction."

Item 12.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402
3

60




Item 12.

e. Design all improvements in accordance with FAA standards and guidelines.

f. Provide for all required design of utilities and services within the area defined in the
preliminary design.

g. Complete final quantity calculations.

h. Complete final engineer's report for the project. This report will detail all data utilized in
the design of the project. The final design report will discuss any/all assumptions made
during the design. This shall include the following: Stormwater system survey, final plans,
estimates of probable construction costs, and phasing/scheduling recommendations.

i. Solicit sponsor and FAA approval.

j- Complete and submit 7460 applications through FAA OEAAA website.

k. Submit project to local and state permitting agencies.

I. Assist airport with advertising and interpretation of project requirements.

m. Assist airport with preparation of the project application to FAA.

n. Deliverables - Engineer will provide interim design submittals at 60 percent, 90 percent
and 100 percent design completion phases. Deliverables for the 60 percent and 90
percent phases will consist of plan sheets, technical specifications, itemized construction
cost estimate, and preliminary Engineer’s Report — electronic copy: PDF format. Paper
copy: bond full-size for plan sheets. Deliverables for the 100 percent phase will consist of

plan sheets, technical specifications, itemized construction cost estimate, and final
Engineer’s Report.

PHASE 05 - Bidding
a. Coordinate schedule and advertisement with Sponsor and FAA.

b. Distribute plans/specifications to bidders, plan rooms, and funding agencies.
c. Conduct the pre-bid meeting.

d. Respond to contractor Requests for Information.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402

4 61




Item 12.

e. Prepare addenda based off pre-bid meeting and bidders’ questions.

f. Beaufort County will conduct the bid opening per standard practices.
g. Prepare and distribute the bid tabulation.

h. Review bids. Coordinate with FAA Civil Rights on DBE participation.

i. Send recommendation of contract award to Sponsor.

j. Assist Sponsor with grant application.

k. Deliverables - Engineer will provide bid tabulation of bids received, and submittal of DBE
participation proposed by low responsive bidder to FAA Civil Rights for review and
concurrence by the FAA. Upon receipt of written approval of DBE Participation Letter
from FAA Civil Rights, Engineer will provide written summary of bids received and
construction contract award recommendation for consideration by the Owner.

PHASE 06 — Construction Administration

a. Basic Services

Construction Phase

The construction phase services for this project includes preparation and distribution of
contract documents and Released For Construction plans and specifications to the
Contractor, coordinating and conducting the Preconstruction Conference meeting and
preparation of minutes, review of project schedule submitted by Contractor, coordination
and review of Contractor submittals, Construction visits/Progress Meetings outlines and
meeting minutes, review field change requests and related correspondence, prepare and
distribute general construction correspondence throughout the project, review quality
acceptance test results, review and process Contractor pay requests, conduct a Final
Inspection and prepare/distribute punch list items letter, develop record drawings, assist
Hilton Head Island Airport with Grant Closeout and prepare Grant closeout paperwork.

The intended deliverables for these services shall include:

J PDF versions of Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications.
J PDF versions of record drawing plan sheets and specifications.
J PDF version of final Engineer’s Report

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402

I 62




b. Special Services

Task 1 - Resident Project Representative
A full-time resident project representative will be provided to observe the construction
and other responsibilities.

Task 2 - Quality Assurance Testing

Quality assurance and acceptance testing required by the project specifications for this
project will be provided. Reports of the tests performed will be provided, along with a
summary of all tests performed at project closeout.

Task 3 - As-Built Survey
An as-built survey for this project will be provided.

Estimated Time Schedule: Work shall be completed in accordance with the schedule established
and agreed upon by the Owner and Engineer.

Cost of Services: The method of payment shall be in accordance with Article 6 — Compensation
of the contract. The work shall be performed in accordance with the Master Contract as a lump
sum of $85,856.00, which includes reimbursable expenses. Special services shall be performed
on a not to exceed basis with a budget of $64,098.00. For a total of $149,954.00 (Appendix B,
page 16).

Design and Bidding $149,954.00
Construction Administration $270,400.75
TOTAL $420,354.75

NOTE: THE SCOPE AND BUDGET PROVIDED IS FOR THE ENTIRE PROGRAM; HOWEVER, THIS
WORK AUTHORIZATION IS ON FOR THE DESIGN AND BIDDING OF THE PROJECT.

Item 12.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402
6

63




Agreed as to Scope of Services, Time Schedule, and Budget:

Item 12.

APPROVED: APPROVED:

BEAUFORT COUNTY TALBERT, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON, INC.
Vice President

Title Title:

Date: Date:

Witness: Witness:

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402
7

64




Item 12.

APPENDIX A SCHEMATIC

*21e48

winuiwinje yusaind sy}
suoddns jeyy dijissun .z
aney 3pIs Aemixe] 1011X04
uo sainanas a1eus ylog

LPIRYPIW 4 @ 4 ABMIXE], UONEDO| T# PA|AYE| BIEID 'T

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

65

Work Authorization 2119-2402




Item 12.

«€4 @ 4, UOIIBIO| TH PB[RCE| B1BID T

21048

winuiwnje 3uaLnd ayl
suoddns jeyy dij 1ssur 2
aAeY apIs AemIXe] 1041X04
uo saan3onJls a1e4s yiog

Nt

T

v >«..s>_wm |

(SR SR R e S

/

B e e L ol itk

4 Aemixe|

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

66

Work Authorization 2119-2402




Item 12.

*24Nn30Nn43s 3y
uo s310q yum payoddns
a|8ue wnuiwnje ,zx,z
aney apis Aemixe] eyd)y
Uo Y pue pISYpIAl eV
‘ssunionas s1es v, IV

1334

oce

— 7

0

Nt

(SR SR R e S

/

<>m.>>_v.ﬂm._. M“\“uﬂﬂ““|“,“ﬂ““

4 Aemixe|

«SV ®@ V, UCI1BJO| £ pP3[qe| 31BID "¢

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

67

Work Authorization 2119-2402

10




Item 12.

'84N1NAS BYL
uo s3joq yum panioddns
9|8ue wnuiwne ,zx,z
aney apis Aemixe] eyd|y
uo GV PUE PIRYPIN ‘EV
‘saanyonils a1eus v, |IV

4 Aemixe|

«PIRYPIN Y @ V, UOIIEIO| p# pB|age| 31D ¢

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

68

Work Authorization 2119-2402

11




Item 12.

*24n312n43s 3y}
uo s1j0q yum psuoddns
9|8ue wnuiwnie ,zx,z
aney apis Aemixe] eydjy
uo G pue plRYpIA ‘€v
‘saanyonals a1eus v, |IV

noAv\\-V‘OON‘ L ¥

1334

I

— [

4 Aemixe|

«EV @V, UOIIBIO| G P3|3qe| 318ID 'S

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

69

Work Authorization 2119-2402

12




Item 12.

Uo|1e207 13 31B1D P|ald PIA ¥

UOI3BI0T 73 3IBID SY

¢y Aemixe]

UQIIE20T 73 DIBID £Y

*21n3an43s ayl
uo s3joq yum pauoddns

9|8ue wnujwne

«CXaC

aney apls Aemixe] eyd|y
uo gy pue pjaypIn ‘gv

‘s31n30n435 91848

Wy

134

R y—

s es—— ]

L kL
“ ¥ Avu
- - - "~ w,,
(& % v T S15vid) ETEL: | !
. (8% ¥ 2 53y-d) LB !
o~ EDHEN AVHNY 0350 ey g onware oo, INISYHA -y i
—EE = :
— — — — — — — — — e — — —
(== S _ 00k X 0O0G) 128 AVAMNOY
b Y3HY som soem £ Y3dY
ONISYHd -, AL AvY DNISYHd -
\ [ \
-
|§|R..I.L,.,I.§|Ilv|: ) e il il el i il el il e il — — —
—n—n lllnﬂ.-'llll.L - (AR W W w R — WA % % — % W= —
ST

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

70

Work Authorization 2119-2402

13




Item 12.

ln,.
GRresEvd o 1
i -4 £
e sy 007 -, INISVHA -

(6472 Svid)
o~ BV AV 03507

Fre 4w

Auh XL A XL I8YHd -
080N A0 -

¥4 €4 Aemixe]

‘1.8

WNUjWN|e JUaLINd 3yl
syoddns jeyi di 32541 ¢
ARy apis Aemixe | 1013x04
uo 531n3oN.435 2148 Yrog

uol11e0| g 31eJ8 £ J01IX0 uo1e20| g 91848 |31y Pl 1013X04

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

71

Work Authorization 2119-2402

14




APPENDIX B FEE PROPOSAL

SUMMARY OF FEES

AIRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
AIP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

May 23, 2024
DESIGN AND BIDDING
DESCRIPTICN
BASIC SERVICES
PROJECT FORMULATION/DEVELOPMENT PHASE (01)
DESIGN PHASE (04)
BIDDING PHASE (05)

SUBTOTAL
EXPENSES

SUBTOTAL
SUBCONSULTANTS

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

DESCRIPTION

BASIC SERVICES

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE (06)
SUBTOTAL

EXPENSES
SUBTOTAL

SUBCONSULTANTS

INSPECTION - RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
SUBTOTAL

TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

=@

ESTIMATED
COST
31,790.00
35,460.00
12,326.00
79,576.00

6,280.00
6,280.00

64,098.00
64,098.00

149,954.00
ESTIMATED
COST
65,644.00
65,644.00

2,775.00
2,775.00

73,948.00
128,033.75
201,981.75
270,400.75

420,354.75

Item 12.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402
15

72




Item 12.

MANHOUR ESTIMATE

AIRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
AIP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

May 23, 2024

PROJECT FORMULATION/DEVELOPMENT PHASE (01)

DESCRIPTION PRIN SPM PM SP E4 E2 El TS5 T3 AD5S  AD3
$290 $250 $230 $171 $160 $120 $ 9 $141 $ 92 $ 90 § 75

CATEX preparation 0 0 12 4 0 0 0 (] 0 4 0
Preliminary project review w/Owner & FAA 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0
Prepare FAA preapplication 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Coordinate with FAA 0 8 4 0 4 0 0 [ 0 0 0
Develop project scope/contract/revisions 0 6 4 0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
Coordinate with subconsultants 0 40 10 0 40 0 0 [ 0 0 0
ALP pen and ink change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
Develop preliminary estimate 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0
MANHOUR TOTAL 0 58 30 10 32 0 0 4] 0 4 0
DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:
CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.

RATE MHRS COST
Principal PRIN § 290 - 3 -
Project Manager SPM $ 250 58 8 14,500
Senior Planner PM $ 230 30 § 6,900
Engineer V SP $ 171 10§ 1,710
Engineer IV E4 $ 160 52 8 8,320
Engineer I E2 $ 120 - $ -
Engineer El $ 96 - $ -
Technician V TS $ 141 - $ -
Technician I T3 $ 92 - $ -
Admin. Assistant [V ADS $ 90 4 3 360
Admin. Assistant ITT AD3 $ 75 - $ -

Total 154
SUBTOTAE 3 31,790.00
DIRECT EXPENSES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.

RATE UNITS COST
Telephone Ls 3§ - 1 $
Postage Ls $ - 1 $ -
Miscellaneous expenses Ls § 100 1 $ 100

(prints, faxes, copies)

Travel LS $ 120 1 $ 120
SUBTOTAL 3 220.00
SCOPE OF SUCONTRACTED SERVICES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.

RATE UNITS COST

LS § - 1 $ -
Ls $ - 1 $ - $-

SUBTOTAL $ -
TOTAL PRELIMINARY AIP ELIGIBLE COST: $  32,010.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402

16 73




Item 12.

MANHOUR ESTIMATE

ATRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND ATRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
AIP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

May 23, 2024

DESIGN PHASE (04)

DESCRIPTION PRIN SPM PM SP E4 E2 El T5 T3 AD5S  AD3

$29 $250 $230 3171 3160 $120 § 9% 3141 $ 92 § 9 § 75

PLANS

Cover Sheet 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0

Construction Safety and Phasing Plan 0 8 0 0 4 0 0 8 0 0 0

Drainage and Erosion Control Plan (2) 0 8 8 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous Details (2) 0 z 4 0 12 0 i 0 0 0 0

DESIGN

Coordmation/Meetings with Client, and FAA 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sequence of construction 0 4 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

CSPP / DHEC / 7460 submittals 0 8 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0

Specifications 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8 0

Quantities and Estimate 0 2 0 0 4 4 0 4 0 0 0

Quality assurance 0 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0

Design engineer's report 0] 4 0 0 g 0 0 0 4 0 0
0

MANHOUR TOTAL 0] 57 14 0 88 4 0 14 8 8 0

DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:

CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.

RATE MHRS COST

Principal PRIN  § 290 - $ -

Project Manager SPM 3 250 57 3 14,250

Senior Planner PM $ 230 14 $ 3,220

Engineer V Sp $ 171 - $ -

Engineer IV E4 $ 160 88 3 14,080

Engineer IT B2 $ 120 4 3% 480

Engineer [ El $ 96 - $ -

Technician V T5 $ 141 14 3 1,974

Technician IT T3 $ 92 g8 % 736

Admin. Assistant IV AD5 3 90 8 3 720

Admin. Assistant ITT AD3 3 75 - $ s

Total 193
SUBTOTAL 8 35460.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402

17 74




MANHOUR ESTIMATE

ATRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND ATRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
AIP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

Item 12.

May 23, 2024

DESIGN PHASE (04)

DIRECT EXPENSES:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST

Telephone LS 8§ 150 1 3 150.00

DHEC permuitting LS 3 2,000 1 3 2,000.00

Miscellaneous expenses LS $ 650 1 $ 650.00

(review fees, prints, faxes, copies)

Travel LS 3 450 1 3 450.00

SUBTOTAL 3 3,250.00

SCOPE OF SUCONTRACTED SERVICES:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST

Assurance Consulting Engineers LS $ 60,126 1 $  60,126.00

SUBTOTAL $  60,126.00

TOTAL DESIGN AIP ELIGIBLE COST: $ 98,836.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402

18

75




MANHOUR ESTIMATE

AIRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
AIP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

El

T5

§160 $ 120 8 96 $ 141

May 23, 2024
BIDDING PHASE (05)
DESCRIPTION PRIN SPM PM Sp E4 E2
290 §$250 $230 $171
Coordinate advertisement 0 2 0 0 0 0
Distribute bid documents 0 0 0 0 2 0
Prebid meeting 0 8 0 0 0 0
Bidder question & answers 1 4 0 0 6 2
Prepare addenda 1 8 0 0 0 2
Bid opening, tabulation 0 8 0 0 0 0
Recommendation of Award 0 2 0 0 0 2
MANHOUR TOTAL 2 32 0 0 8 6
DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:
CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.
RATE MHRS COST
Principal PRIN $ 290 2 % 580
Project Manager SPM $ 250 32 8 8,000
Senior Planner PM $ 230 0 s =
Engineer V SP $ 171 0$ -
Engineer [V E4 $ 160 8 3 1,280
Engineer I E2 $ 120 6 % 720
Engineer [ El $ 96 0$ -
Technician V TS $ 141 [ 846
Technician II T3 $ 92 0 s -
Admin. Assistant IV AD35 $ 90 10 $ 900
Admin. Assistant ITI AD3 $ 75 08 2
Total 64
SUBTOTAL $  12,326.00
DIRECT EXPENSES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST
Telephone L3 $ 50 1 3 50.00
Postage LS § 75 1 $ 75.00
Copying Ls S 00 1 % 400.00
Reproduction L3 $ 400 1 3 400.00
Advertisement LS $ 1,500 1 $ 1,500.00
Miscellaneous expenses Ls $ 225 1 $ 225.00
(prints, faxes, copies)
Travel LS $ 160 1 $ 160.00
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION $ 2,810.00
SCOPE OF SUCONTRACTED SERVICES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST
Assurance Consulting Engineers LS § 3,972 1 $  3,972.00
SUBTOTAL 8 397200
TOTAL BIDDING AIP ELIGIBLE COST: $ 19,108.00

f=li=a e el =]

OO RO oo

T3

ADS5

AD3

§ 92 § 9 § 75

[N eNeNoNoR-Ral

[N SRS R =R~

OO OO0 O oo

Item 12.

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402

19

76




MANHOUR ESTIMATE

AIRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
ATP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

May 23, 2024

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE (06)

El

5

$160 $120 $ 96 $ 141

DESCRIPTION PRIN SPM PM Sp E4 E2
$290 $250 $230 $171
Coordinate award of contract 2 2 2 0 0 0
Coordinate/conduct preconstruction 0 0 8 0 8 0
Preconstruction minutes 0 2 0 0 0 0
Coordinate with subconsultants 0 20 10 0 20 0
Coordinate/review project schedule 0 6 0 0 8 0
Coordinate submittals 0 4 6 0 10 0
Construction visits 0 0 56 0 16 0
Construction observation reports 2 0 10 0 4 0
Calls/Coordination with RPR and Contractor 0 0 8 0 4 0
Review/coordinate field changes 1 8 4 0 6 0
Construction correspondence 0 8 0 0 4 0
Grant administration 0 0 4 8 0 0
Process requests for partial payment 0 0 12 0 12 0
Final inspection and punch list 0 8 0 0 0 0
Develop record drawings 0 1 0 0 8 0
Final report 0 1 0 0 8 0
MANHOUR TOTAL 5 60 120 8 108 0
DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:
CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.
RATE MHRS COST
Principal PRIN 3§ 290 53 1,450
Project Manager SPM 3 250 60 8 15,000
Senior Planner PM 3 230 120 § 27,600
Engineer V SP 3 171 8 3 1,368
Engineer IV E4 $ 160 108 $ 17,280
Engineer II E2 3 120 03 -
Engineer [ El 3 96 26§ 2,496
Technician V TS 3 141 03 -
Technician I T3 3 92 03
Admin. Assistant IV ADS5 $ 90 03 -
Admin. Assistant IIT AD3 3 75 6 3 450
Total 333
SUBTOTAL & 63,644.00
DIRECT EXPENSES:
EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST
Telephone Ls 3 150 1 3 150.00
Postage Ls 3§ 125 1 $ 125.00
Miscellaneous expenses Ls 3 900 1 $ 900.00
(prints, faxes, copies)
Travel Ls 3 1,600 1 $  1,600.00
SUBTOTAL & 277500

cCocowWbEbRooROo OO O

(<]
=N

[=R=-N-B-R-N-R=-N=l-N=N-R-N-E-N-E-]

T3 ADS5  AD3
$ 92 % 9% §$ 75

coocococooooooooo e

Item 12.

D000 O0OO0C OO0 OO
[=- =N = = == === = = = Y = = =1

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402

20

77




MANHOUR ESTIMATE

AIRFIELD DRAINAGE
HILTON HEAD ISLAND ATRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA

ATP PROJECT NO:
TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

Item 12.

May 23, 2024

SCOPE OF SUCONTRACTED SERVICES:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
Additional Quality Acceptance Testing Ls $30,000 1 $  30,000.00
Additional As-Built Survey LS $20,000 1 $  20,000.00
Assurance Consulting Engineers LS $23.948 1 $  23948.00
SUBTOTAL $  73,948.00
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION ADMIN. COST: $ 142,367.00

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

Work Authorization 2119-2402
21

78




Item 12.

MANHOUR ESTIMATE

AIRFIELD DRAINAGE

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT

HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
AIP PROJECT NO:

TBE PROJECT NO: 2119-2402

May 23,2024

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE (PHASE 51)

CALENDAR DAYS 80

DESCRIPTION RPR

$ 118

Project review 4

Site mobilization 4

On site inspection 800

Final inspection 8

Punch list inspection 50

Site demobilization 4

MANHOUR TOTAL 870

DIRECT LABOR EXPENSES:

CLASSIFICATION BILL EST. EST.
RATE MHRS COST

RPR RFR $ 118 870 § 102,660

Total 870

SUBTOTAL $ 102660.00

DIRECT EXPENSES:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST

Telephone Ls §$ 100 1 $ 100.00

Postage Ls $ 100 1 $ 100.00

Miscellaneous expenses Ls 500 1 $ 500.00

(prints, faxes, copies)

Travel LS $ 300 1 $ 300.00

SUBTOTAL $ 1,000.00

PER DIEM:

EXPENSE DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT EST. EST.
RATE UNITS COST

DAILY PER DIEM PD $ 287 85§ 24.374

Total 85
SUBTOTAL $ 24,373.75
TOTAL INSPECTION COST: $ 128,033.75

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.
Work Authorization 2119-2402

22 79




Item 12.

SLYOT'6ET'TS Tvl0L
S£°000°0/2 S UOIIEAISIUILWIPY UOIIINIISUOT
00PS66PT S Suippig pue udisag
00°0SL80Z S [350D uonaniIsuC) A|qeqoid 4O 91EWIST
00°000°S0T $ |{%0z) AousSuijuo) 1sloid
00°0528Z S |(%ST) 1j01d pue peay A0
00°000°5¢S $ [lezol-gns

{uoI1eJ01S21 “2JN12NAIS 21240U02 19Ul SullsIXa 03 sUollEalIpow
00'000'SLE § |0°S 00'000°sL  § |v3 ‘sa1eJs |281s mau Suipnjaul) apesSdn |einjonils 18ju| Jo uoljejuswa|dwy
00°000°5¢T S |0°S 00°000°'st S |v3 uoI1EI0] 13JUI Y3EB 1B ue|d Alajes JO uoneluawaldw)
0000052 S |01 00°000°SZ  $ |51 UOREZINIGOIAl

150D Amnuenp 1502 Jun Hun way|

S38|U] § JO J0I}BY [BINIINAS XAH - Hoday peay uoiH :afold

150D UOIIINJIISUO) 3|(eqo.4d JO S1BWIIST

Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.

80

Work Authorization 2119-2402

23




Item 12.

AIRPORT IFE SERVICES, INC.

115 Blevins Road
Roan Mountain, TN 37687

801-560-6877
AIRPORTIFE.COM

May 28, 2024

Jon Rembold C.M. - Airport Director
Hilton Head Island Airport

120 Beach City Rd

Hilton Head Island, SC 29926

RE: Hilton Head Island Airport
Drainage Structure Improvements Project
Design, Bidding and Construction Phase Services
Independent Fee Estimate (IFE) Proposal

Dear Mr. Rembold:

| have reviewed the project scope of work (SOW) for professional services for the above referenced
project which | received today May 28, 2024.

Airport IFE Services, Inc. can complete the Hilton Head Island Airport’s IFE consisting of Design, Bidding
and Construction Phase Services as shown in the Scope of Work for a lump sum of $2,500.00. Completion
will be on or before six working days from when the notice to proceed is given.

In addition to the review, | include in my lump sum services to be available during or after the
consultant negotiations, to review any items which might need additional attention. We do not
invoice until our IFE information meets your needs and the funding agencies’ approvals.

Airport IFE Services, Inc. thanks you for the opportunity to submit our IFE proposal to assist the Hilton
Head Island Airport. | am available at 801-560-6877 or LewLott@AirportIFE.com if you have any
questions.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,
AIRPORT IFE SERVICES, INC.

Lowwis G Lott

Lewis J Lott, P.E.

81




Item 13.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

Recommendation to Award Consor Engineers, LLC the design contract for Paukie Island Causeway

Culvert Replacement ($187,002.48)

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Public Facilities and Safety Committee — June 24, 2024

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Bryan Bauer, PE — Interim Director of Engineering (5 mins)

ITEM BACKGROUND:

In 2022, the causeway leading to Paukie Island, Paukie Island Rd, began to show signs of distress due
to crossline culverts. Repairs were made to the roadway in late 2022 and early 2023. The roadway
began to show signs of distress again in 2024. As a preventative and temporary measure, a steel plate
has been placed on the roadway to maintain vehicular access while a long-term solution is developed.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

Consor Engineers, LLC is one of the firms awarded the Beaufort County Transportation Engineering
Consultants On-Call RFQ#051922E and were asked to provide a scope and fee for the design of the
culvert replacement.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The contract fee is $162,610.85. Staff recommends a 15% contingency of $24,391.63, bringing the
project budget to $187,002.48. The funding for this project is Road Use Fee (TAG) Professional
Services — account 2342-30-0000-51160 with a balance of $1,357,820.73.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Staff recommends approval of award to Consor Engineers, LLC for the design contract for the Paukie
Island Causeway Culvert Replacement.

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award to Consor Engineers, LLC for the design contract
for the Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement.

Next Step: Move forward with contracting with Consor Engineers, LLC as the award amount does not
require County Council approval.

82




7N consor

June 7, 2024

Bryan Bauer, PE
Transportation Construction Manager
Beaufort County

Re: Scope and Fee Proposal — Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement

Dear Mr. Bauer:

Consor Engineers, LLC (Consor) is pleased to present this proposal for Design Services for the Paukie
Island Causeway Culvert Replacement in Beaufort, SC. We are excited about this new opportunity and
ready to deliver timely services for this project. Consor has reviewed the project, developed a scope of
work, and have estimated the cost for the requested scope of services. The Scope of Work and Estimate
of Cost are included herein for your review. We look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Pz

Joshua Gray, PE, CCM, PMP

Vice President
Consor Engineers, LLC

Consor Engineers, LLC - 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 - P: 888.451.6822 -

www.consoreng.com 83




7N consor

Paukie Island Road causeway has failing corrugated metal pipes (CMP) that have caused settlement of
the road. The two 48” CMPs must be replaced to stabilize the roadway and maintain access to the
island. Consor will perform the following tasks to develop design plans for the construction of the
culvert replacement on the causeway.

The scope of this project is to replace the dual culverts along the Paukie Island Causeway as listed above.

The design will include all temporary traffic design needed for construction of the project. Construction
of a single lane to bypass the work area on the existing causeway is anticipated to be implemented.
Causeway lanes to be replaced in kind. The replacement culvert is proposed to be a box culvert with
end walls. The current causeway is narrow, so the typical section may need to be revised to match field
conditions. Plan development will follow SCDOT standards where applicable. Additional clarifications
and assumptions are as follows:

e Short-term Operations Support: Consor will provide engineering and construction support
services for a short-term fix of the roadway settlement, should the need arise and as requested
by the County’s staff. Hours for principal and project manager consultations are included in the
cost of Preliminary Engineering.

e Survey: Consor will collect survey information, including wetlands delineation. Survey
information for property plats is not required. Survey limits are proposed as 200 feet along the
road either side of the culverts, and 30 to 50 feet out from centerline of road.

e Hydraulics:

o Includes a hydraulic analysis of culvert discharges during tidal inflow and outflow with
respect to headwater and tailwater differential, discharge velocity and scour with the
goal of providing acceptable rates of discharge and protection against scour at the
culvert ends.

o A search of the FEMA Map Service Center (MSC) website and the Flood Insurance Study
(FIS) report did not indicate a hydraulic model was prepared for the area between
Paukie Island and Beaufort. Unless specifically requested we do not propose a hydraulic
model (HEC-RAS) that would normally be used on roadways crossing waterways.

o Research of tidal data to determine rates of rise and fall for a tidal hydrograph

o Estimate the tidal prism

o Calculate the theoretical culvert capacity advantageous to the rates of tidal rise and fall
with respect to head differential and discharge velocity

o Evaluate up to three size alternatives beginning with a box culvert that most closely
matches the flow area of the existing culverts

o Calculate theoretical scour and design countermeasures

o Prepare draft and final reports and documentation per the SCDOT Requirements for
Hydraulic Design Studies

o Provide hydraulic support during preparation of construction documents

e Geotechnical: Assessment of current conditions under culverts and recommendations for long-
term stability. Two borings, one near each end of the existing culverts. Geotechnical Report

Consor Engineers, LLC - 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 - P: 888.451.6822 -
WWW.consoreng.com

Item 13.

84




coNnsor

with engineering recommendations for structural bearing and slope stability. Traffic control will
be provided during drilling operations.

>

e Structural: Design of deep foundation to support the new culvert, if determined necessary by
the geotechnical engineer. Design of headers, wingwalls and cut-off walls for the precast
concrete culvert.

e Submissions: 30% and 100% submissions will include a .pdf. Final submission will include a .pdf
and CAD file of the design plans.

*  Maintenance of Traffic: Use of a single lane detour/bypass to be implemented during
construction.

e Utility Coordination: Will be provided to ensure any impacts are identified and addressed prior
to construction. Relocation and temporary support design to be provided by utilities.

e SUE Services: None anticipated.

e Engineer’s Estimate: An engineer’s estimate will be provided at each stage of design
submission. Pay items will follow SCDOT format except when a special provision or City specific
item is used.

e Environmental Studies and Permitting: See attached scope from Three Oaks Engineering.

*  Right of Way Services: None needed as Causeway is within County R/W.

Consor Engineers, LLC - 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 - P: 888.451.6822 -
WWW.consoreng.com

Item 13.

85




N

coNnsor

Based on a June 24 Notice to Proceed (NTP). Assumes fourteen (14) day City review turnaround times
and up to two (2) plans submissions required.

»

»

»

»

»
»

June 24, 2024: NTP/Kick-Off Meeting

October 9, 2024: Submission 1 —30% Preliminary Design
October 23, 2024: Review Comments from County
February 5, 2025: Submission 2 — 100% Final Design
February 19, 2025: Review Comments from County
March 5, 2025: Final Submittal

The fee for Consor’s performance of the tasks listed in the Scope of Services is $162,610.85.

A detailed manhour estimate is attached to this proposal, along with a breakdown of the environmental
documentation and permitting costs. Direct cost expenses such as copies, prints, postage, vehicle
mileage, next-day mail, and hand-delivery of materials are shown in the estimated fee for professional
services.

N o o AN R

. Surrounding causeway backfill is in good condition, functional, and does not require replacement.
. Temporary bypass road to be designed for a 15 MPH Design Speed.

. Right-of-Way acquisition is not anticipated.

. County will complete submittal reviews within 2 weeks.

. 70% submittal is not required, as R/W acquisition is not anticipated.

. SUE, if determined to be needed, may be provided at additional cost.

. Striping is not currently present and will not be required for the design.

Consor Engineers, LLC - 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 - P: 888.451.6822 -
WWW.consoreng.com

Item 13.

86




@%\“EER//]@ Iltem 13.

Three Oaks Engineering, Inc.
1022 State Street, Building 2
Cayce, SC 29033

Scope of Work
Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement
May 22, 2024

Beaufort County (County) is proposing to replace the existing culvert on Paukie Island Road. The project study area
(PSA) includes an area approximately 400 feet along Paukie Island Road and 200 feet wide centered on the existing
culvert. Consor Engineers (Consor) has requested that Three Oaks Engineering, Inc. (Three Oaks) provide
environmental review and permitting in support of the project. The project is locally funded; therefore, US Army
Corps of Engineers (USACE) will be the lead federal agency.

Three Oaks work on the project will generally include the following tasks:

1.0

11

1.2

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW & DOCUMENTATION

Environmental Project Management

Three Oaks staff (2 staff) will participate in up to four (4) project coordination meetings with Consor
and the County and will coordinate with Consor design staff as needed to understand the proposed
project design, construction, and impacts.

Three Oaks will provide monthly progress reports and invoicing for the duration of the project.

Field Surveys & Documentation
Prior to commencing design and/or environmental activities, Three Oaks will:

Establish Study Area: Three Oaks will define the proposed study area to be utilized during the
environmental analysis and review, in coordination with the County and Consor to ensure that the
study area encompasses proposed design alternatives and potential construction limits.

lurisdictional Wetlands and Waters of the U.S. (WOUS): As required by the presence of WOUS, the
Three Oaks will delineate WOUS utilizing the three-parameter approach (hydric soils, hydrophytic
vegetation and wetland hydrology) set forth in the 1987 US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Wetland
Delineation Manual. Three Oaks will identify and mark wetland boundaries with sequentially numbered
flags in the field. Sub-meter GPS coordinates will be collected for all wetland boundaries and stream
locations. Data required to complete the USACE Atlantic and Gulf Coastal Plain Data Forms will be
collected for wetlands within the PSA. Three Oaks will also flag the limits of state-designated critical
area in the PSA. Three Oaks will provide a list and mapping of flags and GPS data to Consor for use by
the surveyors.

Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination Package: Three Oaks will prepare a Request for Corps
Jurisdictional Determination (JD) package including the required site information, maps, and data
forms. The PJD package will be submitted with the permit applica